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Dylan Schell 

Contact Information 
3900 Crosby Dr. Apt. 2109 
Lexington, KY 
40515 
Cell (304) 319-2086 
dschell329@gmail.com 

Education 

Bachelor of Arts in Sociology and Anthropology from West Virginia University Morgantown, West 
Virginia main campus location received on August 15, 2014.  

Experience 

Community Action Council Intensive Case Management Team Coordinator: August 2018-Present 

Duties Include: Development and execution of Housing Plans, KYHMIS data entry, community outreach, 
involvement in Coordinated Entry, community resource navigation, promoting mental health and 
substance use recovery, delivery of case management services, assisting in locating, procuring and 
maintaining housing, life skills development, landlord mediation, and general client advocacy. 

New Beginnings, Bluegrass, Inc Housing Support Specialist: December 2015 to August 2018 

Duties Included: KYHMIS Agency Administration, managing peer support staff, person Centered Plan 
development and execution, KYHMIS data entry, community outreach, involvement in Coordinated 
Entry, community resource navigation, facilitating community involvement, promoting mental health 
recovery, assisting in locating, procuring and maintaining housing, maintaining client records.  

Coordinating Council for Independent Living Therapeutic Consultant/Positive Behavior Support 
Professional: October 2014 to October 2015 

Duties included: developing behavior plans/protocols, performing functional assessments, providing 
training for staff on goal implementation and behavior plans, setting goals for clients based on their 
dreams, analyzing goal and behavioral data, assessing progress on goals, scheduling home observations, 
presenting recommendations for IDT meetings,  completing incident reports as needed, connecting clients 
with desired services, managing service delivery.  

PACE Enterprises Skills Developer for I/DD individuals: June 2014 to October 2014 

Duties included: implementing behavior plans, assisting clients in skills development, assisting clients in 
time management, driving clients. 

Valley Health Care Health Care Assistant I/DD Division: June 2013 to October 2013 

Duties included: implementing behavior plans, assisting in IDT meetings, assisting clients with daily 
needs, scheduling daily activities, and overseeing community outings. 

Skills and Certifications 

SOAR Certification, Positive Behavior Support Professional certification, MANDT training, CPI 
Training, Behavioral Augmentation, Teaching, Harm Reduction, De-escalation, Trauma Informed Care, 
CPR/First Aid, Mental Health First Aid, SPDAT training, VI-SPDAT training, Negotiation and 
Agreement Development.  

References:  

Available upon request. 
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Homes for All AmeriCorps 

Member Position Description 
 
Program Name:  Homes for All  Grant Number:                        Program Year: 2019-2020                    
 
Position Title:  COC Navigator   Member Name:  
 
Member is -  full time [1700 hours]__X_    half time [900 hours]_____ 

construction_____          housing services__X___ 
 
Partner Site Name: Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison & 
Nicholas Counties, Inc. 
Address:  710 W High St Lexington, KY 40508 
Site Supervisor Name: Dylan Schell 
Site Supervisor Title: Intensive Case Management Team Coordinator 
 
Performance Measures [member activities must align with at least one of the performance 
measures:  

1. Homes for All members will provide housing services to 1800 economically 
disadvantaged individuals, including those experiencing homelessness.  

2. At least 720 of those individuals, including those experiencing homelessness, will 
transition into, acquire, or maintain safe, healthy affordable housing as a result of 
housing services.  

3. Homes for All members will train, recruit, or manage 500 volunteers.  
 

Please provide the following information (must be filled in): 
The Homes for All Member will_X__ or will not___ have recurring access to a vulnerable 
population.  The Member will have recurring access to (choose all that apply) children_X__, 
individuals with disabilities_X_, individuals over the age of 60_X_.   
 
The Homes for All Member will have the following background checks on file with the Homes 
for All program:   

Sexual Predator check_X_ (required for all Members) 
Kentucky Background Check (AOC) _X_ (required for all Members) 
Home State (Member lived out of KY when he/she applied) ____ (if applicable)  
FBI (only Members with recurring access to a vulnerable population as listed above)___ 

 
AmeriCorps Member will be involved with the following activities – 
Each task must include an approximate percentage of time the member will be involved in 
each activity – site activities should not total more than 90% (10% of member hours are 
reserved for required Homes for All activities)  
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Conduct assessment for appropriate housing assistance for individuals and households experiencing 
homelessness.  20% 
 
Assist individuals and households experiencing homelessness in obtaining the necessary documentation 
needed for housing eligibility.  20% 
 
Assist individuals and households experiencing homelessness in identifying and securing housing.   25% 
 
Provide support and services to individuals and families who recently experienced homelessness in 
maintaining housing and achieving greater financial stability.         5% 
 
Recruit, train and schedule volunteers interested in program involvement.      5% 
 
Provide appropriate record-keeping and documentation in accordance with program needs.   15% 
 

• Other Duties Related to the Homes for All Program (approximately 10% of Members 
total time will be spent on these activities). 
o Member are required to participate the following events and trainings that fall 

within their term of service –  
o Pre-Service Orientation, AmeriCorps Launch, MLK Day of Service, National 

Service Recognition Day, Homes for All Spring Service Project, and End of 
Service Celebration.  

o Members will actively participate in Homes for All conference calls and complete 
required Homes for All paperwork/reporting.  

 
Minimum Qualifications: 
Education/Work or Volunteer Experience:  High School Diploma required.  Volunteer or work 
experience in human services field preferred.  Bilingual abilities helpful 
 
Physical Demands:  The ability to communicate verbally and in written format, to handle basic computer 
data entry and lift up to 40 lbs. 
 
Work Environment:  Primarily an office setting, with some time being spent in the broader community. 
 
Machines, Tools & Equipment: Driver’s license with good driving record.  Office machinery such 
as copy machines, fax machines, computer and telephone. 
 
All qualified applicants will receive consideration for placement without regard to age (40 or 
older) race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy), sexual orientation, disability, national 
origin, or gender identity. 
 
Member Signature:________________________________  Date:____/____/2019 
 
Site Supervisor Signature:___________________________          Date:___/____/ 2019 
 
Homes for All Program Director________________________       Date: ___/____/2019 
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JOB TITLE:  Peer Support Specialist 

FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt 

DEPARTMENT: Substance Abuse 

REPORTS TO:  Clinic Manager  

SUPERVISES: N/A 

Position Summary:  The Peer Support Specialist has experience as a recipient of substance abuse services and is willing to use and 

share his or her personal experience, knowledge, and first-hand insight to benefit the team and its clients. The Substance Abuse Peer 

Support Specialist functions as a fully integrated team member to provide expertise about the recovery process. S/he collaborates to 

promote a team culture that recognizes, understands, and respects each client’s point of view, experiences, and preferences.  S/he is 

responsible to maximize client choice, self-determination and decision-making in the planning, delivery, and evaluation of treatment, 

rehabilitation and support services.  S/he provides peer counseling and consultation to individual clients, families, and team staff; acts as 

a liaison with community resources; carries out rehabilitation and support functions; and assists in treatment, substance abuse services, 

education, support and consultation to families, and crisis intervention under the clinical supervision of a Qualified Mental Health 

Professional. The Substance Abuse Peer Support Specialist is a positive team player that promotes a culture of inclusion, participation, 

and the concept of a “Company of One.”    

Qualifications required: 

 High school graduate or G.E.D.

 Valid driver’s license, reliable operating transportation, and proof of current auto insurance

 Experience as a recipient of Substance Abuse Diagnosis and Treatment

 Ability to demonstrate two years of recovery involvement

Qualifications desired: 

 One year experience providing peer support services

 Currently certified and in good standing as a certified Kentucky Peer Specialist

Major job responsibilities and essential functions: 

Peer Support 

 Serve as a mentor to clients to promote hope and empowerment

 Provide peer counseling and support, drawing on common experiences as a peer, to validate clients’ experiences and to provide

guidance and encouragement to clients to take responsibility and actively participate in their own recovery

 Help clients identify, understand, and combat stigma and discrimination associated with mental illness and addiction and develop

strategies to reduce self-stigma.

 Act as a role model for clients by sharing own recovery process and teaching effective coping techniques and self-help strategies in

promoting personal growth and development handling internal and external stresses

 Perform mentoring, problem solving, encouragement and support on and off the job site

 Provide instruction/assistance with self-care and daily life activities

 Assist clients in the process of acquiring housing, necessities and skills needed to maintain daily and monthly household

responsibilities

 Assist and support clients with promoting personal, health and wellness lifestyle

 Provide assistance with education for life and job development skills

 Assist with developing skills and methods to maintain financial management and independent living

 Provide side-by-side support, coaching and encouragement promoting meaningful social skills enhancing daily living and recovery

 Advocate on behalf of clients

Collaboration and Communication 

 Participate as an active member of the client’s recovery team, including participation in team meetings and treatment planning

meetings, to assist clients with the identification and attainment of their recovery goals

 Attend all drug court sessions and team meetings

 Attend face to face supervision with QMHP a minimum of every two weeks

 Act as a liaison between consumers and members of the recovery team

 Inform supervisor, and other members of the team, of issues/concerns related to individual clients

Documentation 

 Maintain accurate, thorough documentation on all assigned cases and use documentation to assist clients in evaluating progress
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 Submit documentation within required timeframes 

 

Nonessential functions: 

 Perform other related duties as assigned 

Success factors/job competencies: 

 Commitment to organizational mission , vision, and values 

 Conducts self in a professional and ethical manner 

 Familiarity with types of mental health diagnosis and prevalent symptoms related to each 

 Have thorough knowledge of the principles of recovery 

 Excellent written, verbal and interpersonal communication skills 

 Must be well-grounded in own recovery 

 Promote a positive work environment by demonstrating the ability to work as part of a team and independently with instruction 

 Proficient with Microsoft Office products 

Physical demands, work environment, and equipment used:  The physical demands and work environment characteristics described 

here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential function of this job.  Reasonable 

accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

 Physical demands:  While performing the essential duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to stand or sit; use hands to 

finger, handle, or feel; talk; and hear. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision abilities 

required by this job include close vision, distance vision and ability to adjust focus. 

 Work environment:  The duties of this position are performed in a typical administrative office environment but also require 

occasional travel to satellite offices.  While performing the duties of this position, the employee is exposed to weather conditions 

prevalent at the time.  The noise level of the environment is usually minimal.   

 Equipment used:  Office equipment (computer, phone, copier, projector, etc.); personal or organization vehicle 

Performance standards: 

 Annual performance appraisal for peer support level 

 Attainment of annual goals established between supervisor and incumbent 

Approval/revision date:  November 4, 2015 

 

I have read and completely understand the duties and responsibilities of this job description. I am able to perform the essential functions 

of this job. I understand that it is my responsibility to read and follow all company policies while employed, including any changes made 

to them.  I understand that I should consult the Human Resources Department if I have any questions that are not answered. 

 

 

Signature:  ______________________________________________________  Date:  _______________________________ 
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Hope Center, Inc. 
 

Job Description 
 

 

Job Title: Street Outreach Peer Specialist 
Reports to: Street Outreach Coordinator 
FLSA Status: Nonexempt 
Date:  January 8, 2016 
 
Summary: Identifies unsheltered individuals living in the community; assists them, whenever feasible, 
in obtaining housing in the community; coordinates services; and provides ongoing support and case 
management services. 
 
Essential Functions and Responsibilities: 
1. Assist Street Outreach Coordinator is identifying and screening potential participants in the program. 
2. Conducts active outreach with Street Outreach Coordinator to engage individuals living on the 

streets or in shelters to identify referrals. 
3. Works with housing providers in the community to find appropriate permanent housing. 
4. Assists clients with filling out paperwork needed to facilitate finding and moving into housing. 
5. Maintain contact with individuals living on the streets at least once per week. 
6. Works with clients and Street Outreach Coordinator to formulate a treatment plan to help identify 

goals and needs that will assist with long term stability. 
7. Attempts to engage clients in appropriate services as determined by clients’ needs and/or wishes. 
8. Coordinates mental health, medical and substance abuse services with Hope Center or other 

community providers, as needed. 
9. Provides or arranges transportation to and from services, including shelter and appointments as 

needed and works with clients on using public transportation, if possible. 
10. Works with clients to identify local community resources as they relate to individual need. 
11. Provides education, assistance on meeting basic needs and life skills as appropriate. 
12. Attends weekly case management, mental health and Coordinators meetings. 
13. Meets regularly with community partners to address client needs. 
14. Complete VI-SPDAT on individuals living in the community. 
15. Collect basic intake information to comply with HMIS data standards 
16. Documents services provided in case notes and in HMIS database, as appropriate. 
17. Maintains records and client data as required by agreement with LFUCG. 
18. Flexible schedule of 40 hours/week with possible evening and weekend hours based on client needs. 
19. Participates in rotating on-call schedule including afterhours outreach in Cold Patrol. 
20. Performs outreach during inclement weather. 
21. Participates in continuing education and staff training programs. 
22. Adheres to all rules and procedures as stated in the Hope Center employee handbook. 
 
Supervisory Responsibilities: This job has no supervisory responsibilities. 
 
Education and/or Experience:  Bachelor’s degree in Social Work, Psychology, Counseling, or related 
field preferred.  Mental health experience preferred. 
 
Certificates, Licenses, Registrations:  Current driver’s license with acceptable driving record. 
 
Competencies:  To perform the job successfully, an individual should demonstrate the following 
competencies: 
 
Client service – Observe strict confidentiality requirements; respond promptly to client needs; manage 
difficult or emotional client situations with tact. 
 

Ethics – Treat people with respect; inspire the trust of others; work with integrity and ethically; uphold 
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organization values. 
 

Judgment – Exhibit sound and accurate judgment; display willingness to make decisions; support and 
explain reasoning for decisions; include appropriate people in decision-making process; make timely 
decisions. 
 

Professionalism – Approach others in a tactful manner; react well under pressure; treat others with 
respect and consideration regardless of their status or position; accept responsibility for own actions; 
follow through on commitments. 
 

Teamwork - Balance team and individual needs; exhibit objectivity and openness to others’ views; give 
and welcome feedback; contribute to building a positive team spirit. 
 

Adaptability – Adapt to changes in the work environment; manage competing demands; able to deal 
with frequent change, delays, or unexpected events. 
 

Attendance/Punctuality – Is consistently at work and on time; ensure work responsibilities are covered 
when absent; arrive at meetings and appointments on time. 
 

Dependability – Follow instructions, respond to management direction; take responsibility for own 
actions; keep commitments; complete tasks on time or notifies appropriate person with an alternate plan. 
 

Quality – Demonstrate accuracy and thoroughness; look for ways to improve and promote quality; apply 
feedback to improve performance; monitor own work to ensure quality. 
 
Other Skills and Abilities: 
1. Work 40 hours/week, according to assigned schedule, with evening, weekend, and some holiday 

hours required.    
2. Ability to work with persons in a manner that shows sensitivity to cultural diversity, sexual 

orientation, and racial/ethnic differences. 
 
Physical Demands: While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit, 
stand, walk, talk, and hear.  Must be able to drive and get in and out of the car several times a day. 
 
Work Environment: Varies, includes time in the elements transporting clients & performing outreach. 
Includes extreme weather conditions during Cold Patrol. 
 
Other Qualifications:  Must be able to pass drug screen 
 
Signatures 
 
This job description has been approved by all levels of management: 
 
Manager_____________________________________________ 
 
Human Resources______________________________________ 
 
Employee signature below constitutes employee’s understanding of the requirements, essential functions 
and duties of the position. 
 
Employee________________________________ Date____________________  
 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty and physical requirement 
satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions. 
 
This job description is not designed to cover or contain a comprehensive listing of activities, duties, or responsibilities that 
are required of the employee.  Duties, responsibilities, and activities may change at any time with or without notice.  This in 
no way implies a contractual agreement of any sort.  Kentucky is an “at-will” state.  This means that the term of employment 
is discretionary with either party being able to terminate employment at any time and no action may be maintained for 
breach of the employment contact. 
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Job title:  Assertive Street Outreach (ASO) Clinician 
FLSA status:  Exempt 
Department:  Service Area 
Reports to:  Regional Director of SMI Operations 
Supervises:  NA   

 

Position Summary:  The Assertive Street Outreach (ASO) Clinician provides clinical services for individuals and families that present 
for treatment. In collaboration with a treatment team, provide services including but not limited to: crisis intervention and risk 
assessment; person-centered recovery planning and on-going assessment; client education; individual, family, group and collateral 
therapy and referral and advocacy.  The ASO Clinician caseload is shared among the team members and the clinician is expected to 
provide services to each individual based on their needs and goals for recovery.  The ASO Clinician is a positive team player that 
promotes a culture of inclusion, participation, and the concept of a “Company of One.” 

Qualifications required: 
 Master’s degree in Marriage and Family Therapy, Professional Counseling, Psychology, Social Work or closely related field; 
 License as required by Kentucky professional boards and billing sources 
 Valid driver’s license, reliable operating transportation, and proof of current auto insurance 

Qualifications desired: 
 Experience working with individuals and families who experience various mental, behavioral, and substance abuse conditions 
 Qualified Mental Health Professional 
 Licensed Independent Practitioner  

Major job responsibilities and essential functions:  

  Clinical services 
o Deliver evidenced based counseling that provides effective treatment of medically necessary mental and behavioral conditions 

in individuals and families   
o Assess and integrate historical, psychosocial and medical information into a client’s individualized treatment 
o Monitor the need for continuation of services and/or change in level of intensity of services 
o Utilize Partners for Change Outcome Management System (PCOMS) in assessments and clinical treatment episodes 
o Delivers services in a mobile fashion and in accordance with ACT standards and fidelity measures  
o Manage situations involving client risk and provide crisis clinical services that help de-escalate crisis situations and promote 

stability 
o Manage a caseload that may include diverse populations with a variety of clinical needs 
o Be available for on-call rotation for up to one week at a time on a regularly scheduled basis 

 Collaboration and communication 
o Collaborate with client, family (if appropriate) and treatment team to develop person-centered recovery goals 
o Communicate effectively with team members and collateral sources 
o Refer and transfer when clinically indicated 
o Participate in morning meeting led by the ACT Team Leader 

 Documentation 
o Manage medical records for clients receiving services 
o Secure authorizations for medically necessary clinical services for clients 
o Document to meet medical necessity standards 
o Submit documentation within required timeframes 

 
Nonessential functions: 
 Provide staff trainings as requested 
 Engage community partners and advance relationships in regards to medically necessary care and service opportunities 
 Perform other related duties as assigned 

Success factors/job competencies (knowledge, skills, and abilities): 
 Commitment to organization mission, vision, and values 
 Professional and ethical conduct 
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 Knowledge of laws and regulations pertaining to payors and client confidentiality 
 Successfully provide authorized care within payor requirements 
 Good written, verbal and interpersonal communication skills 
 Knowledge of and utilization of evidenced based psychotherapy that helps resolve mental and behavioral conditions in individuals 

and families. 
 Demonstrated mastery of incorporating Consumer Directed Outcome Informed care with every client 
 Demonstrated ability to work collaboratively with team members 
 Manages productivity expectations effectively 
 Completes all required trainings in requested timeframes 
 Stays current on best practices in clinical care 
 

Physical demands, work environment, and equipment used:  The physical demands and work environment characteristics described 
here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
 Physical demands:  While performing the essential duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to stand or sit; use hands to 

finger, handle, or feel; talk; and hear. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision abilities 
required by this job include close vision, distance vision and ability to adjust focus.   

 Work environment:  The duties of this position are performed in a typical administrative office and a variety of community locations 
including client homes and schools.  While performing the duties of this position, the employee is exposed to weather conditions 
prevalent at the time.  The noise level of the environment is usually minimal.  

 Equipment used:  Office equipment (computer, phone, copier, projector, etc.); personal vehicle 

Performance standards: 
 Annual performance appraisal for clinical level 
 Attainment of annual goals established between supervisor and incumbent 

Approval/revision date:   

I have read and completely understand the duties and responsibilities of this job description. I am able to perform the essential functions 
of this job. I understand that it is my responsibility to read and follow all company policies while employed, including any changes made 
to them.  I understand that I should consult the Human Resources Department if I have any questions that are not answered. 
 
 
Signature:  ______________________________________________________  Date:  _______________________________ 
 

 

16



17



18



19



20



21



 

Community Action Council for 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, 
Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. 
Lexington, Kentucky 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Council for 
Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and Affiliates, which comprise the 
consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of 
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the consolidated 
financial statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.  The financial 
statements of WinterCare Energy Fund, Inc. and CAC Holdings, Inc., were not audited in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards as they did not receive any federal funding. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas 
Counties, Inc. and Affiliates as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Other Matters 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, and the schedules on pages 22 to 30 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the consolidated financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.  In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 6, 2019, on our 
consideration of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, 
Inc. internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, 
Harrison and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community 
Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance.   

Wipfli LLP 

February 6, 2019 
Madison, Wisconsin 
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and
Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2018

Assets

Current assets:
Cash 1,684,640$                
Restricted deposits 41,368                       
Investments 3,042,140                  
Grants receivable 1,260,343                  
Accounts receivable 288,691                     
Other assets 173,600                     

Total current assets 6,490,782                  

Long-term assets:
Beneficial interest in assets held by others 103,170                     
Other assets 104,901                     

Total long-term assets 208,071                     

Property and equipment, net 5,635,915                  

TOTAL ASSETS 12,334,768$              

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Current portion of notes payable 283,216$                   
Accounts payable 349,442                     
Accrued payroll and related expenses 968,965                     
Grant funds received in advance 143,055                     

Total current liabilities 1,744,678                  

Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable 1,114,538                  
Fair value of interest rate swap agreement 50,058                       
Tenant security deposits 5,434                         
Capital advance - HUD 1,061,800                  

Total long-term liabilities 2,231,830                  

Total liabilities 3,976,508                  

Net assets:
Unrestricted:
  Undesignated 2,983,241                  
  Board designated 2,006,611                  
  Board designated for endowment 82,669                       
Total unrestricted net assets 5,072,521                  
Temporarily restricted 3,285,739                  

Total net assets 8,358,260                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 12,334,768$              

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 3
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, 
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and
Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

Revenue:
Grant revenue 21,042,458$        475,340$             21,517,798$        
Investment income 117,768               63,015                 180,783               
Other income 3,308,987            17,574                 3,326,561            
In-kind contributions 369,388               0                          369,388               
Net assets released from restriction through
satisfaction of program restrictions 80,459                 80,459)(                 0                          

Total revenue 24,919,060          475,470               25,394,530          

Expenses:
Program activities:

Child education 16,223,947          0                          16,223,947          
Community services 2,418,843            0                          2,418,843            
Weatherization services 3,751,346            0                          3,751,346            
Senior programs 305,309               0                          305,309               

Total program activities 22,699,445          0                          22,699,445          
Fund-raising 68,258                 0                          68,258                 
Management and general expenses 2,038,214            0                          2,038,214            

Total expenses 24,805,917          0                          24,805,917          

Change in net assets 113,143               475,470               588,613               
Net assets - Beginning of year 4,959,378            2,810,269            7,769,647            

Net assets - End of year 5,072,521$          3,285,739$          8,358,260$          

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 4
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and
Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Total Management
Child Community Weatherization Senior Program and General Total

Education Services Services Programs Activities Expenses Fund-raising Expenses

EXPENSES
Salaries 6,841,298$         763,099$            301,733$            71,182$              7,977,312$         1,078,099$         22,802$              9,078,213$         
Fringe benefits 2,946,279           313,343              132,027              33,017                3,424,666           283,697              10,061                3,718,424           
Consultant/contractual 3,387,935           126,866              601,060              0                         4,115,861           120,062              21,629                4,257,552           
Space 890,373              157,154              40,162                54,626                1,142,315           248,610              4,306                  1,395,231           
Supplies 942,568              32,965                83,085                2,723                  1,061,341           7,094                  0                         1,068,435           
Travel 227,896              70,534                5,575                  15,159                319,164              60,283                528                     379,975              
Communications and IT 245,199              49,448                18,069                2,866                  315,582              107,719              234                     423,535              
Beneficiary assistance 26,296                854,426              2,563,586           3,643                  3,447,951           0                         0                         3,447,951           
Other 352,369              45,355                6,049                  122,093              525,866              132,650              8,698                  667,214              
In-kind expenses 363,734 5,653 0 0 369,387              0 0 369,387              

TOTAL EXPENSES 16,223,947$       2,418,843$         3,751,346$         305,309$            22,699,445$       2,038,214$         68,258$              24,805,917$       

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 5
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and
Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Increase (decrease) in cash:
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets 588,613$        

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 399,997          
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments 135,840)(          
Net realized and unrealized gain on beneficial interest in assets held by others 8,253)(              
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement 39,474)(            
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Restricted deposits 8,840)(              
Grants receivable 326,135)(          
Accounts receivable 25,768            
Other assets 36,512)(            
Accounts payable 122,545          
Accrued payroll and related expenses 135,973)(          
Grant funds received in advance 127,555          
Tenant security deposits 1,075              

Net cash provided by operating activities 574,526          

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments 298,756)(          
Distribution from beneficial interest in assets held by others 655                 
Purchase of property and equipment 29,036)(            

Net cash used in investing activities 327,137)(          

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on notes payable 271,625)(          

Net cash used in financing activities 271,625)(          

Change in cash 24,236)(            
Cash - Beginning of year 1,708,876       

Cash - End of year 1,684,640$     

Supplemental schedule of operating activities:
Interest paid and expensed 86,821$          

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 6
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Operations 
 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. (CAC), a 
nonprofit organization, was established in 1965.  CAC studies the causes and effects of poverty and, in turn, 
creates opportunities for individuals and families, which enable them to become self-sufficient members of the 
community.  Approximately 75% of CAC’s grant funding is received under its federal Head Start grant. 
 
Shepherd Place, Inc. (the “Project”) is a 20-unit apartment facility for the elderly and handicapped located in Carlisle, 
Kentucky.  It is operated under Section 202 of the National Housing Act and regulated by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) with respect to rental charges and operating methods.  The Project also 
receives Section 8 Housing Assistance payments from HUD.  A significant portion of the Project’s rental income is 
received from HUD. 
 
WinterCare Energy Fund, Inc. (“WinterCare”) was formed in 1983 to provide energy assistance to individuals 
demonstrating need in Kentucky.  Program funding is by donations from individuals and utility companies. 
 
CAC Holdings, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of CAC formed March 27, 2018.  CAC Holdings, Inc. had no assets 
as of June 30, 2018 nor any activity for the period March 27, 2018 to June 30, 2018. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
These financial statements are consolidated and include the accounts of Community Action Council for Lexington-
Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc., Shepherd Place, Inc., WinterCare Energy Fund, Inc., and 
CAC Holdings, Inc. (the “Organizations”).  CAC Holdings, Inc. is a wholly owned by CAC.  The other 
Organizations are nonprofits that share some common board members with CAC and are operated by the 
management team of CAC.  All material intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Classification of Net Assets 
 
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the Organizations and changes therein are classified and reported 
as follows: 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations or where donor-imposed 
stipulations are met in the year of the contribution. 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Classification of Net Assets (Continued) 
 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or may not be met, 
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time.  When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted 
net assets are transferred to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. 
 
Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained 
permanently by the Organizations.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Organizations to use all or part 
of the income earned on any related investments for general or specific purposes.  Currently, the Organizations do 
not have any permanently restricted net assets. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions 
expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.  All other donor-restricted contributions are 
reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.  
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restriction. 
 
Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met 
and the promises become unconditional. 
 
Grants are recorded as either contributions or exchange transactions based on criteria contained in the grant award. 
 

A. Grant Awards That Are Contributions 
 
Grants that qualify as contributions are recorded as invoiced to the funding sources.  Revenue is recognized in 
the accounting period when the related expenses are incurred.  Amounts received in excess of expenses are 
reflected as grant funds received in advance. 
 
B. Grant Awards That Are Exchange Transactions 
 
Exchange transactions reimburse based on a predetermined rate for services performed.  The revenue is 
recognized in the period the service is performed.  Amounts received in excess of those earned are reflected 
as deferred revenue. 

 
Other income primarily consists of daycare revenue, and amounts received from individuals, companies, and 
governmental sources in conjunction with grant activities and are reported as revenue when earned.  
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Investments 
 
Investments are recorded at fair value as determined in an active market.  Realized and unrealized gains and losses 
are recognized as investment income in the consolidated statement of activities. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable consist primarily of various amounts due from other entities.  Receivables are reviewed for 
collectability by management, and an allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded as needed based on collection 
history and customer attributes.  Management considers these receivables to be collectible; therefore, no allowance 
for uncollectible amounts has been recorded. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts 
and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful life using the straight-
line method.  Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lesser of the lease term or the economic useful life 
of the improvement using the straight-line method.  The Organizations consider property and equipment to be 
items with a cost of $5,000 or more and a useful life of over one year. 
 
Property and equipment purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organizations while used in the program for 
which they were purchased or in other future authorized programs.  However, the various funding sources have a 
reversionary interest in the property and equipment purchased with grant funds.  Its disposition, as well as the 
ownership of any proceeds therefrom, is subject to funding source regulations.  Property and equipment purchased 
with grant funds, net of depreciation, was $5,000,998 at June 30, 2018. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
CAC, Shepherd Place and Wintercare are exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  The Organizations are also exempt from Kentucky state income tax.  CAC Holdings, Inc. is a 
wholly owned LLC and for tax purposes is treated as a disregarded entity and is included on CAC’s tax return. 
 
The Organizations are required to assess whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained 
upon examination on the technical merits of the position assuming the taxing authority has full knowledge of all 
information.  If the tax position does not meet the more likely than not recognition threshold, the benefit of that 
position is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.  The Organizations have determined there are 
no amounts to record as assets or liabilities related to uncertain tax positions.   
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
In-Kind Contributions 
 
CAC has recorded in-kind contributions for space, supplies, and professional services in the consolidated statement 
of activities in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  GAAP requires that only 
contributions of service received which create or enhance a nonfinancial asset or require specialized skill by the 
individual possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation be 
recorded.  The requirements of GAAP are different than the in-kind requirements of several of CAC’s grant 
awards.  CAC received in-kind contributions from partner agencies for teaching staff, space, transportation, and 
other operating costs that were not reimbursed by CAC.  CAC also received in-kind contributions for 
nonprofessional volunteers, food, and clothing during the year with a value of approximately $3,500,000, primarily 
for its Head Start, Community Service Block Grant, and Housing programs, which is not recorded in the 
consolidated statement of activities. 
 
Derivative Instrument 
 
CAC holds a derivative financial instrument to manage risk related to interest rate movements.  The interest rate 
swap contract, designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedge, is reported at fair value.  The gain or loss on the 
effective portion of the hedge initially is included in the consolidated statement of activities.  CAC documents its 
risk management strategy and hedge effectiveness at the inception of and during the term of each hedge.  CAC’s 
interest rate risk management strategy is to stabilize cash flow requirements by maintaining an interest rate swap 
contract to convert variable-rate debt to a fixed rate. 
 
Cost Allocation 
 
The cost of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
consolidated statement of activities and consolidated statement of functional expenses.  In addition, joint costs are 
allocated to benefiting programs using an indirect cost rate.  Joint costs are those costs incurred for the common 
benefit of all the Organizations’ programs that cannot be readily identified with a final cost objective.  The indirect 
cost rate has been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). 
 
Note 2:  Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
CAC maintains cash balances at several financial institutions.  Accounts at these institutions are insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for up to $250,000.  During the year, balances at one bank exceeded 
FDIC coverage.  Management believes this financial institution has a strong credit rating and credit risk related to 
these deposits is minimal. 
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 Note 3:  Restricted Deposits 
 
Under the terms of the Regulatory Agreement the Project has with HUD, the Project is required to set aside 
specified amounts for the replacement of property and other project expenditures as approved by HUD.  Restricted 
funds at June 30, 2018, are composed of the following: 
 
Escrow fund $ 8,532 
Reserve for replacement  27,355 
Residual receipts  47 
Tenant security deposits  5,434 

 
Total $ 41,368 
 
Note 4:  Grants Receivable 
 
The grants receivable balance represents amounts due as of June 30, 2018, as follows: 
 
Direct federal programs $ 602,441 
State and local programs  872,994 
 
Total $ 1,475,435 
 
Note 5:  Investments 
 
CAC has a health insurance trust for self-funded health insurance costs of CAC.  The allocation of investments in 
the trust at June 30, 2018, was 1% money market, 59% fixed income, and 40% in equities.  The health insurance 
trust investments of $1,651,523 are carried at fair value. 
 
CAC also participates in an investment pool with seven other nonprofits to self-fund unemployment insurance 
claims.  The fair value of CAC’s portion of the investment pool at June 30, 2018, was $1,390,617 and represents 
approximately 17% of the pooled investment total.  The fair value of the investment pool at June 30, 2018, was 
$8,127,472.  The allocation of the investments in the pool at June 30, 2018, was 1% money market, 1% in a real 
estate investment trust, 38% fixed income, and 60% equities.  
 
Investment income for the year ended June 30, 2018, included interest and dividends of $39,187 and a net realized 
and unrealized gain of $135,840 for these investments and $8,253 of unrealized gain related to the endowments 
disclosed in Note 7. 
 
Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility.  
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
certain investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported 
in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 6:  Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others 
 
When assets are held by an unrelated, not-for-profit organization solely for the benefit of another not-for-profit 
(beneficiary) organization, an asset is recorded on the beneficiary not-for-profit organization’s financial 
statements.  The Blue Grass Community Foundation holds assets for the benefit of CAC.  CAC has recorded these 
assets on the consolidated statement of financial position as a long-term asset with a corresponding temporarily 
restricted net asset for the Community Action Council RSVP balance and unrestricted net asset for the Community 
Action Council balance.  Any change in the net asset value during the fiscal period is to be recorded in the 
consolidated statement of activities as an increase or decrease in net assets. 
 
The balance at June 30, 2018, consists of the following: 
 
Community Action Council RSVP $ 20,501 
Community Action Council  82,669 
 
Total $ 103,170 
 
Note 7:  Endowments 
 
The Board of Directors follows the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as it is the 
relevant state law governing its endowment funds.  The Board of Directors has interpreted UPMIFA as allowing 
the appropriation for expenditures for the purposes for which an endowment is established the net appreciation, 
realized and unrealized, in the fair value of an endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund as is 
prudent under ordinary business care considering the facts and circumstances prevailing at the time action is taken. 
 
The RSVP endowment fund was established by a previous RSVP volunteer.  This endowment is for the benefit of 
the grantee of the RSVP grant.  CAC transferred $55,000 to Blue Grass Community Foundation (BGCF) to 
establish the second fund, with the anticipation that other donations received by BGCF would be added to this 
fund.  CAC’s agreement with BGCF states that BGCF is responsible for the investment and administration of the 
funds.  Each January, 5% of the rolling 12-month average is placed in liquid funds that may be withdrawn or 
reinvested.   
 
Changes in endowment funds were as follows: 
 
  Donor-Designated 
 Board-Designated (Temporarily 
 (Unrestricted) Restricted) Total       

Endowments at July 1, 2017  $ 76,888  $ 18,684  $ 95,572 
Distributions ( 400) ( 255) ( 655) 
Net appreciation  6,181  2,072  8,253 
 
Endowments at June 30, 2018  $ 82,669  $ 20,501  $ 103,170 
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Note 8:  Property and Equipment 
 
A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 
 
Land  $ 586,250 
Land improvements  160,443 
Building and improvements  7,554,922 
Leasehold improvements  248,170 
Equipment  2,993,013 
Subtotal  11,542,798 
Accumulated depreciation ( 5,906,883) 
 
Total  $ 5,635,915 
 
Note 9:  Line of Credit 
 
CAC has an available line of credit in the amount of $750,000 with Central Bank & Trust Co. with a maturity date 
of December 25, 2018.  The interest rate on the line of credit is variable at the prime rate with a floor of 5%.  The 
rate was 5.25% at June 30, 2018.  There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit as of June 30, 2018.  The 
line of credit is secured by three properties.   
 
Note 10:  Capital Advance - HUD 
 
The Project was financed principally by a HUD capital advance mortgage note (“Note”) in the amount of 
$1,061,800, payable to HUD.  The Note bears no interest and repayment is not required so long as the housing 
remains available for very low-income elderly persons in accordance with the regulatory agreements and 
regulations. 
 
The Note may not be prepaid prior to the maturity date without the prior written approval of HUD.  Provided that 
(1) the housing has remained available for occupancy by eligible persons until the maturity date of the Note, and 
(2) the Note has not otherwise become due and payable by reason of default under the Note, mortgage or 
regulatory agreement or regulations, the Note will be considered to be paid in full and discharged at maturity, 
February 1, 2034. 
 
If the Note is considered in default under the terms of the Note, mortgage, the regulatory agreement or the 
regulations, at the option of the holder of the Note, HUD may take possession of the project, collect all rents and 
charges in connection of the project, declare the entire principal due and foreclose on the mortgage, apply any 
court, Federal or State, sanctions, and/or terminate the Project Rental Assistance Contract.  The holder of the Note 
is required to give written notice of such default and the Project has 30 days to correct such default.  If the default 
is not corrected within 30 days, HUD may proceed to correct the violation. 
 
The Note, in its principal amount, is reflected on the consolidated statement of financial positions as long-term debt 
until such time as the HUD capital advance Note expires.  Although management currently intends to comply with 
all Note provisions over the term of the Note, management believes that the possibility that repayment may occur is 
other than remote; therefore, believes recognition of the Note as long-term debt is the appropriate treatment.
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Note 11:  Notes Payable 
 
A summary of notes payable at June 30, 2018, is as follows: 
 
Note payable at 5.75% interest, with monthly principal and interest payments of $1,789, 
due November 2018.  The note is secured by two school buses. $ 9,047 
 
Revenue bond payable, fixed at 3.74% through an interest rate swap agreement with 
interest paid quarterly and principal paid annually, due November 2023.  The bond is 
secured by real estate known as the Administrative and Support Services Center located 
on High Street in Lexington Kentucky and the Fayette West Center located on 
Cambridge Drive in Lexington, Kentucky.  1,065,000 
 
Note payable at 4.25% interest, with monthly payments of $1,751, due September 2021.  
The note is secured by real estate Russell School Community Services Center located on 
Toner Street in Lexington, Kentucky.    62,065 
 
Note payable at a fixed rate of 5.75%, with monthly principal and interest payments of 
$2,004, due September 2022.  The note is secured by two school buses.  101,113 
 
Note payable at a fixed rate of 5.5 % interest, with monthly payments of $2,297, due 
August 2019.  The note is secured by all available assets of CAC.  43,245 
 
Note payable with interest at 0% and monthly payments of $1,934, due February 2020.  
The note is secured by phone equipment.  56,854 
 
Note payable at a fixed rate of 3.3% interest, with monthly payments of $466, due May 
2022.  The note is secured by a vehicle.  20,505 
 
Note payable at a fixed rate of 4.99% interest, with monthly payments of $1,512, due 
July 2020.  The note is secured by server equipment.   12,596 
 
Note payable at a fixed rate of 3.3% interest, with monthly payments of $621, due 
May 2022.  The note is secured by a vehicle.  27,329 
 
Total notes payable  1,397,754 
Current portion ( 283,216) 
 
Long-term notes payable  $ 1,114,538 
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Note 11:  Notes Payable (Continued) 
 
The future maturities of notes payable at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 
 
2019  $ 283,216 
2020  265,759 
2021  225,189 
2022  217,145 
2023  186,445 
Thereafter  220,000 
 
Total long-term notes payable  $ 1,397,754 
 
Note 12:  Derivative Instrument 
 
CAC maintains an interest rate swap agreement with a financial institution.  Under the terms of this arrangement, 
the parties, in effect, pay each other’s interest cost on the underlying debt.  The arrangement has the effect of 
controlling CAC’s interest rate risk in a rising interest rate environment. 
 
At June 30, 2018, the interest rate swap had a notional amount of $990,000 with interest fixed at 3.74% and 
expires November 2023. 
 
The interest rate swap was issued at market terms; therefore, had no fair value at inception.  The notional amount 
changes with quarterly payments.  The carrying amounts of the interest rate swap has been adjusted to fair value as 
of June 30, 2018 which, because of changes in forecasted levels of The Bond Market Association, Municipal Swap 
Index, resulted in reporting a liability for the fair value of the future net payments forecasted under the interest rate 
swap of $50,058.  Adjustments to the carrying amount of the interest rate swap are reported as other income. 
 
Note 13:  Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2018, consist of the following: 
 
Self-funded health insurance trust $ 1,725,252 
Unemployment insurance trust  1,394,353 
Beneficial interest in assets held by others  20,501 
Other  145,633 
 
Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 3,285,739 
 
These net assets are either restricted by time or purpose.  When the restriction is met, the net assets are released 
from restriction. 
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Note 14:  Operating Leases 

CAC leases various facilities and equipment for the operation of its programs under operating leases.  Rent 
expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, was $104,222.  Future minimum lease payments beyond 2018 are as 
follows: 

2019 $ 68,354 
2020 68,352 
2021 42,551 
2022 38,551 
2023 25,056 
Thereafter 65,712 

Total $ 308,576 

Note 15:  Retirement 

CAC offers its employees a defined contribution retirement plan.  The plan is open to all employees.  An employee 
may begin contributions to the plan upon employment.  CAC contributes 8% of gross wages to the plan for 
qualified employees after one year of employment.  CAC’s contribution vests over a period of five years.  CAC’s 
contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2018, were $628,489. 

Note 16:  Fair Value Measurements 

Financial accounting standards define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  In determining 
fair value, CAC uses various valuation methods including the market, income, and cost approaches.  The 
assumptions used in the application of these valuation methods are developed from the perspective of market 
participants pricing the asset or liability.  Inputs used in the valuation methods can be either readily observable, 
market-corroborated, or generally unobservable inputs. 

Whenever possible CAC attempts to utilize valuation methods that maximize the use of observable inputs and 
minimizes the use of unobservable inputs.  Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation methods, 
CAC is required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy.  The fair value 
hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values.  Assets and liabilities 
measured, reported and/or disclosed at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three 
categories: 

Level 1 - Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 – Observable, market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data. 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data. 
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Note 16:  Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 
 

Information regarding the fair value of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2018, is as 
follows:  

  Recurring Fair Value Measurements Using 

 

Assets 
Measured at Fair 

Value 

Quoted Prices in Active 
Markets for Identical 

Assets 
(Level 1) 

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant  
Unobservable 

 Inputs 
(Level 3) 

CAC share of 
unemployment 
investment pool:     
Money market     $            7,287                      $                     0                  $               7,287 $                      0 
Fixed income 541,605 541,605                      0                         0 
REIT 15,036 15,036                      0                         0 
Equities 826,689 826,689                       0                          0 
     
Investments held by 
health trust:     
Money market 20,129 0 20,129 0 
Fixed income 961,133 961,133 0 0 
Equities 670,261 670,261 0 0 
     
Total investments 3,042,140 3,014,724 27,416 0 
     
Endowment funds     
held by Foundation  103,170        0                      0 103,170 

Total assets $       3,145,310 $       3,014,724 $             27,416 $            103,170 

Liability – Interest rate 
swap $            50,058 $                     0 $             50,058 $                      0 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodology used for each asset and liability measured at fair value on 
a recurring basis: 

 
• Money market funds are valued using other market data. 

 
• The interest rate swap was valued using a discounted cash flow model that utilizes observable market 

data, such as market interest rates and interest rate curves. 
 

• Endowment funds held by Foundation are valued using amounts provided by the Blue Grass 
Community Foundation. 
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Note 16:  Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

Changes in the fair value of the investments held by trust endowment funds are recorded as investment income in 
the consolidated statement of activities.  The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of 
CAC’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the 
year ended June 30, 2018: 

Endowment funds – Beginning of year  $ 95,572 
Distributions ( 655) 
Net realized and unrealized gain 8,253 

Endowments funds – End of year  $ 103,170 

Note 17:  Commitments and Contingencies 

At June 30, 2018, CAC had commitments under various ongoing grant awards of approximately $3,350,000.  The 
revenue relating to these grants is not recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements because 
the revenue recognition is conditional on the incurrence of expenditures or the performance of services in the next 
fiscal year. 

CAC is subject to various claims and legal matters arising in the normal course of business.  In the opinion of 
management, all such matters are adequately covered by insurance and, if not so covered, are without merit or 
would not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements if an unfavorable settlement was reached.  

Note 18: Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 6, 2019 which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued.  The following information summarizes significant events that occurred after June 30, 2018. 

On January 1, 2019, CAC began operating a head start grant in Clark, Estill, Gerrard, Jackson, Laurel, Madison, 
Powell, and Rockcastle counties in Kentucky.  The Office of Head Start grant award of $8,558,975 covers the 2019 
calendar year.
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Schedule A-1
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2018

CFDA 
Number

Pass-Through Entity 
Identifying Number

 Pass-Through 
Subrecipients 

 Federal 
Expenditures 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed-Through the Kentucky Department of Education
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 0$                       425,147$               

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Funding
Project Independence 14.267 KY0165L4I021500 0                         126,693                 
Project Independence KY0165L4I021601 0                         156,580                 

0                         283,273                 
Direct Funding
Samaritan - Fayette 14.235 KY0103L4I021507 0                         17,603                   

Passed-Through the Kentucky Housing Corporation
Continuum of Care/Bourbon County KY0008L4I001407 0                         57,979                   
Continuum of Care/Bourbon County KY008L4I001609 0                         128,748                 
Samaritan KY0103L4I021406 0                         22,533                   
Samaritan KY0022L4I001609 0                         90,356                   
Public Housing - Bonus KY0113L4I001402 0                         176,290                 
Public Housing - Bonus KY0008L4I001609 0                         149,686                 

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA #14.235 0                         643,195                 

Passed-Through the Kentucky Housing Corporation
TBRA 14.239 TB16-0553-01 0                         39,090                   
TBRA TB18-0553-01 0                         38,023                   

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA #14.239 0                         77,113                   

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 0                         1,003,581              

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed-Through Bluegrass Area Development District
WIOA Cluster
LEEP 17.259 16-003Y 0                         13,099                   
LEEP - RURAL 16-002Y 0                         10,351                   

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA #17.258, 17.259, 17.278 0                         23,450                   

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Passed-Through the Kentucky Housing Corporation
DOE-Weatherization Assistance 81.042 WX18-0603-02 0                         129,371                 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 19                 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Schedule A-2
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2018

CFDA 
Number

Pass-Through Entity 
Identifying Number

 Pass-Through 
Subrecipients 

 Federal 
Expenditures 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed-Through the Kentucky Association of Community Action Agencies
Application Assisters 93.332 HBAP-R5-2 0                         309,786                 

Passed-Through Community Action Kentucky
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 736-1700002734 3 0                         1,769,790              

Passed-Through the Kentucky Housing Corporation
Low-Income Home Weatherization Assistance Program LH18-0603-02 0                         168,568                 

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA #93.568 0                         1,938,358              

Passed-Through the Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services
Community Services Block Grant 93.569 PON2 736 1700002530 0                         665,687                 

Project Life 93.674 PON2 736 160000200001 0                         487,296                 

Direct Funding
Head Start 93.600 04CH475403 0                         615,887                 
Head Start 04CH475404 0                         6,816,981              
Early Head Start 04CH475403 0                         226,718                 
Early Head Start 04CH475404 0                         3,366,833              
Migrant Head Start 90CM982002 0                         486,468                 
Migrant Head Start 90CM982003 0                         2,364,734              
Partnering for Excellence 04HP003002 0                         549,517                 
Partnering for Excellence 04HP003003 0                         1,766,831              

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA #93.600 0                         16,193,969            

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 0                         19,595,096            

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICE

Direct Funding
Retired Senior Volunteer Program 2017 94.002 17RSKY001 0                         54,256                   
Retired Senior Volunteer Program 2018 17RSKY001 0                         19,990                   

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA #94.002 0                         74,246                   

Direct Funding
Foster Grandparent/Senior Companion Cluster 
Foster Grandparents Program 2017 94.011 17SFSKY001 0                         55,183                   
Foster Grandparents Program  2018 17SFSKY001 0                         55,261                   

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA #94.011, 94.016 0                         110,444                 

TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICE 0                         184,690                 

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES 0$                       21,361,335$          

See Independent Auditor's Report. 20                 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Schedule A-3
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 - Indirect Cost Rate

See Independent Auditor's Report. 21 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following the 
cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement.  Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award activity of Community Action 
Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards  (Uniform 
Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, 
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or 
cash flows of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent       
de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.  Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, 
Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. has an indirect rate that has been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
(DHHS).
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and
Affiliates
Schedule B
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2018

Community WinterCare
Action Shepherd Energy Consolidated
Council Place Fund Eliminations Balance

Current assets:
Cash 1,608,110$         5,279$          71,251$            0$                      1,684,640$      
Restricted deposits 0                         41,368          0                       0                        41,368             
Investments 3,042,140           0                   0                       0                        3,042,140        
Grants receivable 1,260,343           0                   0                       0                        1,260,343        
Accounts receivable 242,665              0                   57,583              11,557)(               288,691           
Other assets 173,600              0                   0                       0                        173,600           

Total current assets 6,326,858           46,647          128,834            11,557)(               6,490,782        

Long-term assets:
Beneficial interest in assets held by others 103,170              0                   0                       0                        103,170           
Other assets 104,901              0                   0                       0                        104,901           

Total long-term assets 208,071              0                   0                       0                        208,071           

Property and equipment, net 5,283,043           352,872        0                       0                        5,635,915        

TOTAL ASSETS 11,817,972$       399,519$      128,834$          11,557)($             12,334,768$    

Current liabilities:
Current portion of notes payable 283,216$            0$                 0$                     0$                      283,216$         
Accounts payable 311,858              10,198          38,943              11,557)(               349,442           
Accrued payroll and related expenses 968,965              0                   0                       0                        968,965           
Grant funds received in advance 143,055              0                   0                       0                        143,055           

Total current liabilities 1,707,094           10,198          38,943              11,557)(               1,744,678        

Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable 1,114,538           0                   0                       0                        1,114,538        
Fair value of interest rate swap agreement 50,058                0                   0                       0                        50,058             
Tenant security deposits 0                         5,434            0                       0                        5,434               
Capital advance - HUD 0                         1,061,800     0                       0                        1,061,800        

Total long-term liabilities 1,164,596           1,067,234     0                       0                        2,231,830        

Total liabilities 2,871,690           1,077,432     38,943              11,557)(               3,976,508        

Net assets:
Unrestricted (deficit) 5,660,543           677,913)(        89,891              0                        5,072,521        
Temporarily restricted 3,285,739           0                   0                       0                        3,285,739        

Total net assets (deficit) 8,946,282           677,913)(        89,891              0                        8,358,260        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 11,817,972$       399,519$      128,834$          11,557)($             12,334,768$    

See Independent Auditor's Report. 22
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Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette,
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and
Affiliates
Schedule C
Consolidating Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2018

 
Community  Wintercare

Action Shepherd Energy Consolidated
Council Place Fund Eliminations Balance

Revenue:
Grant revenue 21,517,798$       0$                  0$                 0$                  21,517,798$     
Investment income 180,724              59                  0                   0                    180,783            
Other income 3,062,327           99,815           364,067        199,648)(         3,326,561         
In-kind contributions 369,388              0                    0                   0                    369,388            

Total revenue 25,130,237         99,874           364,067        199,648)(         25,394,530       

Expenses:
Salaries 9,078,213           0                    0                   0                    9,078,213         
Fringe benefits 3,718,424           0                    0                   0                    3,718,424         
Consultants/contractual 4,257,552           0                    0                   0                    4,257,552         
Space 1,352,557           42,674           0                   0                    1,395,231         
Supplies 1,068,435           0                    0                   0                    1,068,435         
Travel 379,975              0                    0                   0                    379,975            
Communications and IT 423,535              0                    0                   0                    423,535            
Beneficiary assistance 3,237,949           0                    364,378        154,376)(         3,447,951         
Other 621,338              76,538           14,610          45,272)(           667,214            
In-kind expenses 369,387              0                    0                   0                    369,387            

Total expenses 24,507,365         119,212         378,988        199,648)(         24,805,917       

Change in net assets 622,872              19,338)(           14,921)(          0                    588,613            
Net assets (deficit) - 
  Beginning of year 8,323,410           658,575)(         104,812        0                    7,769,647         

Net assets (deficit) - End of year 8,946,282$         677,913)($       89,891$        0$                  8,358,260$       

See Independent Auditor's Report. 23
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CFDA # 93.568

(Over) Under
Cost Category Budget Actual Budget

ADMINISTRATIVE
Indirect Cost Allocation 161,111$                    161,111$                         -$                          

BENEFITS
Subsidy 333,909                      333,909                           -                            
Crisis 1,277,204                   1,274,770                        2,434                    

TOTAL 1,772,224$                 1,769,790$                      2,434$                  

Sub Contract # LIHEAP-013

Schedule of Budget and Actual Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette
Bourbon, Harrison & Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Low Income Housing Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Contract # 736 1700002734 3

See Independent Auditor's Report. 24
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Cost Category Amount

ADMINISTRATIVE    
Indirect Cost Allocation 161,111$              

BENEFITS
Subsidy 333,909                           333,909                
Crisis   

Benefits 1,210,910                        
Energy Counseling 63,860                             1,274,770             

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,769,790             

LESS QUESTIONED COSTS -                           

TOTAL ALLOWABLE COSTS 1,769,790             

CONTRACT PAYMENT RECEIVED as of JUNE 30, 2018 1,771,743             

UNDER/(OVER) PAYMENT (1,953)$                 

Sub Contract # LIHEAP-013

Schedule of Program Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette
Bourbon, Harrison & Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Low Income Housing Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Contract # 736 1700002734 3

See Independent Auditor's Report. 25
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Actual Questioned Allowable
Cost Category Expenses Costs Costs

ADMINISTRATIVE    
Indirect Cost Allocation 161,111$                -$                                    161,111$               

BENEFITS
Subsidy 333,909                  -                                      333,909                 
Crisis 1,274,770               -                                      1,274,770              

TOTAL 1,769,790$             -$                                    1,769,790$            

Sub Contract # LIHEAP-013

Schedule of Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette
Bourbon, Harrison & Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Low Income Housing Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Contract # 736 1700002734 3

See Independent Auditor's Report. 26
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CFDA # 93.568

(Over) Under
Cost Category Budget Actual Budget

Administration 16,250$                      15,303$                           947$                     
Wx Materials 32,000                        23,421                             8,579                    
Wx Program Support 111,855                      53,848                             58,007                  
Wx Labor 41,800                        29,987                             11,813                  
H&S Materials 27,200                        20,385                             6,815                    
H&S Labor 31,771                        25,624                             6,147                    
Vehicles/Equipment -                              -                                   -                        
Liability Insurance 3,076                          -                                   3,076                    
Financial Audit -                              -                                   -                        
T&TA -                              -                                   -                        
TOTAL 263,952$                    168,568$                         95,384$                
Expenses Not Yet Invoiced at 06/30/2018 (54,478)                            
Invoiced and Paid at 06/30/2018 114,090$                         

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette
Bourbon, Harrison & Nicholas Counties, Inc.

LIHEAP Weatherization
Contract # LH18-0603-02

Sub Contract # LHWX-013

Schedule of Budget and Actual Expenses

See Independent Auditor's Report. 27
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CFDA # 81.042

(Over) Under
Cost Category Budget Actual Budget

Administration 18,780$                      13,939$                           4,841$                  
Wx Materials 24,379                        21,689                             2,690                    
Wx Program Support 47,917                        40,843                             7,074                    
Wx Labor 35,858                        32,803                             3,055                    
H&S Materials 8,271                          5,145                               3,126                    
H&S Labor 15,760                        11,945                             3,815                    
Vehicles/Equipment -                              -                                   -                        
Liability Insurance 4,565                          -                                   4,565                    
Financial Audit 3,913                          -                                   3,913                    
T&TA 13,026                        3,007                               10,019                  
TOTAL 172,469$                    129,371$                         43,098$                
Expenses Not Yet Invoiced at 06/30/2018 (39,803)                            
Invoiced and Paid at 06/30/2018 89,568$                           

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette
Bourbon, Harrison & Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Department of Energy Weatherization
Contract # WX18-0603-02

Sub Contract # DOEWX-013

Schedule of Budget and Actual Expenses

See Independent Auditor's Report. 28
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CFDA # 93.332

(Over) Under
Cost Category Budget Actual Budget

Salaries & Fringe 236,269$                    184,035$                         52,234$                
Occupancy Costs 60,952                        68,163                             (7,211)                   
Contract Expense 40,800                        -                                   40,800                  
Other Expenses 24,691                        24,027                             664                       
Administration 43,888                        33,561                             10,327                  

TOTAL 406,600$                    309,786$                         96,814$                

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette
Bourbon, Harrison & Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Application Assisters
Contract # PON2 713 1700000740 3

Sub Contract # HBAP-R5-2

Schedule of Budget and Actual Expenses

See Independent Auditor's Report. 29
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Fund
Program Name / Funding 

Department
Award 

Amount

 Expenditures Prior 
to 

July 1, 2017
June 30, 2018 
Expenditures Unspent Award

4359
OHPI - Emergency Family 
Housing (2 year award)  $      237,000  $                 182,080  $                     54,920  $                         -   

4360
ESR - Emergency Family 
Housing            92,000                               -                           56,276                     35,724 

4400 Healthy Meals on a Budget            11,040                               -                             2,512                       8,528 

TOTAL  $      340,040  $                 182,080  $                   113,708  $                 44,252 

Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette
Bourbon, Harrison & Nicholas Counties, Inc.

Schedule of Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (LFUCG) Funded Awards
Schedule of Awards and Expenditures

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

See Independent Auditor's Report. 30
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon,  
Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. 
Lexington, Kentucky 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Community Action Council for Lexington-
Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. and Affiliates which comprise the consolidated statement 
of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses 
and cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated February 6, 2019.  The financial statements of WinterCare Energy Fund, Inc. 
and CAC Holdings, Inc. were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and accordingly this 
report does not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable 
noncompliance associated with those entities. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Community Action 
Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s internal control over financial 
reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and 
Nicholas Counties, Inc.'s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s internal 
control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
.
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, 
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance, and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Council for 
Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s internal control or on compliance.  This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s internal 
control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
 

Wipfli LLP 
 
February 6, 2019 
Madison, Wisconsin 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon,  
Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. 
Lexington, Kentucky 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, 
Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program 
for the year ended June 30, 2018.  Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and 
Nicholas Counties, Inc.'s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.’s consolidated 
financial statements include Shepherd Place, Inc., a related entity, which had expenditures greater than $750,000 in 
federal awards during the year ended June 30, 2018, and has a separate single audit, which is not included in this 
single audit.  Therefore, our audit, described below, did not include the operations of Shepherd Place, Inc. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, 
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.'s major federal program based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action 
Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.  
However, our audit does not provide legal determination on Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, 
Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.'s compliance. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc. 
complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, 
Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered 
Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, Inc.'s internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison, and Nicholas Counties, 
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent 
or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance; such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is 
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
 

Wipfli LLP 
 
February 6, 2019 
Madison, Wisconsin 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued  Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness identified? No 
Significant deficiency identified?  No 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over federal programs: 
Material weakness identified?  No 
Significant deficiency identified? No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
accordance with the Uniform Guidance [2 CFR 200.516(a)]?  No 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Name of Federal Major Program CFDA No. 

Head Start 93.600 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?   Yes 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 

Section IV - Prior Year Findings 

None 
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AFFIDAVIT 

Comes the Affiant, ___________________________________, and after being first duly 
sworn, states under penalty of perjury as follows: 

1. His/her name is _____________________________________ and he/she is the individual
submitting the proposal or is the authorized representative
of_____________________________________________________________, the entity submitting
the proposal (hereinafter referred to as "Proposer").

2. Proposer will pay all taxes and fees, which are owed to the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government at the time the proposal is submitted, prior to award of the contract and will maintain a
"current" status in regard to those taxes and fees during the life of the contract.

3. Proposer will obtain a Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government business license, if applicable,
prior to award of the contract.

4. Proposer has authorized the Division of Central Purchasing to verify the above-mentioned
information with the Division of Revenue and to disclose to the Urban County Council that taxes and/or
fees are delinquent or that a business license has not been obtained.

5. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of the campaign finance laws of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky within the past five (5) years and the award of a contract to the Proposer
will not violate any provision of the campaign finance laws of the Commonwealth.

6. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of Chapter 25 of the
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Code of Ordinances, known as "Ethics Act."

Continued on next page 
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AGREEMENT 

Standard Title VI Assurance 

The Lexington Fayette-Urban County Government, (hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”) hereby agrees that as a 
condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, it will comply with Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78Stat.252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”), and all requirements 
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of 
the Secretary, (49 CFR, Part 21) Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Program of the Department of Transportation – 
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”) and other pertinent 
directives, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age (over 40), religion, 
sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Recipient receives Federal financial 
assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, including the Federal Highway Administration, and hereby gives 
assurance that will promptly take any necessary measures to effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by 
subsection 21.7(a) (1) of the Regulations.  

The Law 

• Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (amended 1972) states that it is unlawful for an employer to discriminate in
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, age (40-70 years) or national origin.

• Executive Order No. 11246 on Nondiscrimination under Federal contract prohibits employment discrimination by
contractor and sub-contractor doing business with the Federal Government or recipients of Federal funds.  This
order was later amended by Executive Order No. 11375 to prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

• Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 states:

The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of physical or mental handicap. 

• Section 2012 of the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Act of 1973 requires Affirmative Action on behalf of
disabled veterans and veterans of the Vietnam Era by contractors having Federal contracts.

• Section 206(A) of Executive Order 12086, Consolidation of Contract Compliance Functions for Equal Employment
Opportunity, states:

The Secretary of Labor may investigate the employment practices of any Government 
contractor or sub-contractor to determine whether or not the contractual provisions 
specified in Section 202 of this order have been violated. 

****************************** 
The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government practices Equal Opportunity in recruiting, hiring and promoting.  It is the 
Government's intent to affirmatively provide employment opportunities for those individuals who have previously not been 
allowed to enter into the mainstream of society.  Because of its importance to the local Government, this policy carries the 
full endorsement of the Mayor, Commissioners, Directors and all supervisory personnel.  In following this commitment to 
Equal Employment Opportunity and because the Government is the benefactor of the Federal funds, it is both against the 
Urban County Government policy and illegal for the Government to let contracts to companies which knowingly or 
unknowingly practice discrimination in their employment practices.  Violation of the above mentioned ordinances may cause 
a contract to be canceled and the contractors may be declared ineligible for future consideration. 

Please sign this statement in the appropriate space acknowledging that you have read and understand the provisions 
contained herein.  Return this document as part of your application packet. 

63



64



DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF CENTRAL PURCHASING 
LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

200 EAST MAIN STREET 
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40507 

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITIES AND DBE CONTRACT PARTICIPATION 

Notice of requirement for Affirmative Action to ensure Equal Employment Opportunities and 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Contract participation. Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises (DBE) consists of Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (MBE) and Woman-
Owned Business Enterprises (WBE).  

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government has set a goal that not less than ten 
percent (10%) of the total value of this Contract be subcontracted to Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises, which is made up of MBEs and WBEs. The Lexington Fayette Urban County 
Government also has set a goal that not less than three percent (3%) of the total value of this 
Contract be subcontracted to Veteran-owned Small Businesses.  The goal for the utilization 
of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises as well Veteran –owned Small Businesses as 
subcontractors is a recommended goal. Contractor(s) who fail to meet such goal will be 
expected to provide written explanations to the Director of the Division of Purchasing of 
efforts they have made to accomplish the recommended goal, and the extent to which they 
are successful in accomplishing the recommended goal will be a consideration in the 
procurement process.  Depending on the funding source, other DBE goals may apply.   

For assistance in locating Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Subcontractors contact: 

Sherita Miller, MPA, Division of Central Purchasing 
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government 

200 East Main Street, 3rd Floor, Room 338 
Lexington, Kentucky 40507 

smiller@lexingtonky.gov  

Firm Submitting Proposal: 
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Complete Address:  
Street City Zip 

Contact Name:   Title:  

Telephone Number:   Fax Number: 

Email address: 
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WORKFORCE ANALYSIS FORM 

Name of Organization:   Community Action Council for Lexington-Fayette, Bourbon, Harrison and 

Nicholas Counties, Inc.   

Prepared by: Rhonda Williams, Human Resources Quality Manager  Date: 7/22/2019

  (Name and Title)  Revised 2015-Dec-15

Categories Total White  

(Not 
Hispanic 
or Latino) 

Hispanic 
or 

Latino 

Black or 
African-

American 
(Not 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Native 
Hawaiian 

and 
Other 
Pacific 

Islander 
(Not 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Asian 
(Not 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

American 
Indian or 
Alaskan 
Native 
(not 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Two or 
more 
races  

(Not 
Hispanic 

or 
Latino 

Total 

M F M F M F M F M F M F M F M F 

Administrators 8 1 3  1 3  2 6 

Professionals 56 8 19 3 3 1 21  1 12 44 

Superintendents 

Supervisors 26 2 12  1 1 10  23 3 

Foremen 

Technicians 

Protective Service 

Para-Professionals 254 5 146  24 2 74 1  2 7 247 

Office/Clerical 23 3 7  2  9  2 5 18 

Skilled Craft 5 2 1  2  4 1 

Service/Maintenance 15 1 4  4 4  2  7 8 

Total: 387 22 192 3 30 11 121 1  2 5 60 327 
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LFUCG STATEMENT OF GOOD FAITH EFFORTS 
Bid/RFP/Quote #_________________________________ 

By the signature below of an authorized company representative, we certify that we 
have utilized the following Good Faith Efforts to obtain the maximum participation 
by MWDBE and Veteran-Owned business enterprises on the project and can supply 
the appropriate documentation.   

_____ Advertised opportunities to participate in the contract in at least two (2) 
publications of general circulation media; trade and professional association 
publications; small and minority business or trade publications; and publications or 
trades targeting minority, women and disadvantaged businesses not less than fifteen 
(15) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow MWDBE firms and
Veteran-Owned businesses to participate.

_____ Included documentation of advertising in the above publications with the 
bidders good faith efforts package 

_____ Attended LFUCG Central Purchasing Economic Inclusion Outreach event 

_____ Attended pre-bid meetings that were scheduled by LFUCG to inform 
MWDBEs and/or Veteran-Owned Businesses of subcontracting opportunities 

_____ Sponsored Economic Inclusion event to provide networking opportunities 
for prime contractors and MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses 

_____ Requested a list of MWDBE and/or Veteran subcontractors or suppliers from 
LFUCG and showed evidence of contacting the companies on the list(s). 

_____ Contacted organizations that work with MWDBE companies for assistance 
in finding certified MWBDE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses to work on this 
project.  Those contacted and their responses should be a part of the bidder’s good 
faith efforts documentation.  
_____Sent written notices, by certified mail, email or facsimile, to qualified, 
certified MWDBEs soliciting their participation in the contract not less than seven 
(7) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow them to participate
effectively.

_____ Followed up initial solicitations by contacting MWDBEs and Veteran-
Owned businesses to determine their level of interest. 

_____ Provided the interested MWBDE firm and/or Veteran-Owned business with 
adequate and timely information about the plans, specifications, and requirements 
of the contract. 

_____ Selected portions of the work to be performed by MWDBE firms and/or 
Veteran-Owned businesses in order to increase the likelihood of meeting the 
contract goals.  This includes, where appropriate, breaking out contract work items 
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GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Each Respondent shall comply with all Federal, State & Local regulations
concerning this type of service or good.

The Respondent agrees to comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations
governing safe and healthful working conditions, including the Occupational Health
and Safety Act of 1970, 29 U.S.C. 650 et. seq., as amended, and KRS Chapter
338. The Respondent also agrees to notify the LFUCG in writing immediately upon
detection of any unsafe and/or unhealthful working conditions at the job site. The
Respondent agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the LFUCG harmless from all
penalties, fines or other expenses arising out of the alleged violation of said laws.

2. Failure to submit ALL forms and information required in this RFP may be grounds
for disqualification.

3. Addenda: All addenda and IonWave Q&A, if any, shall be considered in making
the proposal, and such addenda shall be made a part of this RFP. Before
submitting a proposal, it is incumbent upon each proposer to be informed as to
whether any addenda have been issued, and the failure to cover in the bid any
such addenda may result in disqualification of that proposal.

4. Proposal Reservations: LFUCG reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to
award in whole or part, and to waive minor immaterial defects in proposals. LFUCG
may consider any alternative proposal that meets its basic needs.

5. Liability: LFUCG is not responsible for any cost incurred by a Respondent in the
preparation of proposals.

6. Changes/Alterations: Respondent may change or withdraw a proposal at any time
prior to the opening; however, no oral modifications will be allowed. Only letters, or
other formal written requests for modifications or corrections of a previously
submitted proposal which is addressed in the same manner as the proposal, and
received by LFUCG prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of proposals, will
be accepted. The proposal, when opened, will then be corrected in accordance
with such written request(s), provided that the written request is contained in a
sealed envelope which is plainly marked “modifications of proposal”.

7. Clarification of Submittal: LFUCG reserves the right to obtain clarification of any
point in a bid or to obtain additional information from a Respondent.

8. Bribery Clause: By his/her signature on the bid, Respondent certifies that no
employee of his/hers, any affiliate or Subcontractor, has bribed or attempted to
bribe an officer or employee of the LFUCG.
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9. Additional Information: While not necessary, the Respondent may include any
product brochures, software documentation, sample reports, or other
documentation that may assist LFUCG in better understanding and evaluating the
Respondent’s response.  Additional documentation shall not serve as a substitute
for other documentation which is required by this RFP to be submitted with the
proposal,

10. Ambiguity, Conflict or other Errors in RFP: If a Respondent discovers any
ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in the RFP, it shall
immediately notify LFUCG of such error in writing and request modification or
clarification of the document if allowable by the LFUCG.

11. Agreement to Bid Terms: In submitting this proposal, the Respondent agrees that
it has carefully examined the specifications and all provisions relating to the work
to be done attached hereto and made part of this proposal. By acceptance of a
Contract under this RFP, proposer states that it understands the meaning, intent
and requirements of the RFP and agrees to the same. The successful Respondent
shall warrant that it is familiar with and understands all provisions herein and shall
warrant that it can comply with them. No additional compensation to Respondent
shall be authorized for services or expenses reasonably covered under these
provisions that the proposer omits from its Proposal.

12. Cancellation: If the services to be performed hereunder by the Respondent are not
performed in an acceptable manner to the LFUCG, the LFUCG may cancel this
contract for cause by providing written notice to the proposer, giving at least thirty
(30) days notice of the proposed cancellation and the reasons for same. During
that time period, the proposer may seek to bring the performance of services
hereunder to a level that is acceptable to the LFUCG, and the LFUCG may rescind
the cancellation if such action is in its best interest.

A. Termination for Cause

(1) LFUCG may terminate a contract because of the contractor’s failure
to perform its contractual duties

(2) If a contractor is determined to be in default, LFUCG shall notify the
contractor of the determination in writing, and may include a specified
date by which the contractor shall cure the identified deficiencies.
LFUCG may proceed with termination if the contractor fails to cure the
deficiencies within the specified time.

(3) A default in performance by a contractor for which a contract may be
terminated shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to:
(a) Failure to perform the contract according to its terms, conditions

and specifications;
(b) Failure to make delivery within the time specified or according
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to a delivery schedule fixed by the contract; 
(c) Late payment or nonpayment of bills for labor, materials,

supplies, or equipment furnished in connection with a contract
for construction services as evidenced by mechanics’ liens filed
pursuant to the provisions of KRS Chapter 376, or letters of
indebtedness received from creditors by the purchasing
agency;

(d) Failure to diligently advance the work under a contract for
construction services;

(e) The filing of a bankruptcy petition by or against the contractor;
or

(f) Actions that endanger the health, safely or welfare of the
LFUCG or its citizens.

B. At Will Termination

Notwithstanding the above provisions, the LFUCG may terminate this contract at 
will in accordance with the law upon providing thirty (30) days written notice of that 
intent, Payment for services or goods received prior to termination shall be made 
by the LFUCG provided these goods or  services were provided in a manner 
acceptable to the LFUCG. Payment for those goods and services shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

13. Assignment of Contract: The contractor shall not assign or subcontract any portion
of the Contract without the express written consent of LFUCG. Any purported
assignment or subcontract in violation hereof shall be void. It is expressly
acknowledged that LFUCG shall never be required or obligated to consent to any
request for assignment or subcontract; and further that such refusal to consent can
be for any or no reason, fully within the sole discretion of LFUCG.

14. No Waiver: No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power
or privilege hereunder, nor any single or partial exercise thereof, nor the exercise
of any other right, remedy, power or privilege shall operate as a waiver hereof or
thereof. No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power or
privilege under or in respect of this Contract shall affect the rights, remedies,
powers or privileges of LFUCG hereunder or shall operate as a waiver thereof.

15. Authority to do Business: The Respondent must be a duly organized and
authorized to do business under the laws of Kentucky. Respondent must be in
good standing and have full legal capacity to provide the services specified under
this Contract. The Respondent must have all necessary right and lawful authority
to enter into this Contract for the full term hereof and that proper corporate or other
action has been duly taken authorizing the Respondent to enter into this Contract.
The Respondent will provide LFUCG with a copy of a corporate resolution
authorizing this action and a letter from an attorney confirming that the proposer is
authorized to do business in the State of Kentucky if requested.  All proposals must
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Applicant Name: Community Action Council  

Authorized Representative: Bridgett Rice, Interim Executive Director 
Applicant Address: PO Box 11610, Lexington, KY 40576 

Applicant Phone: 859-233-4600 
Applicant Email: Bridgett.Rice@commaction.org 

Title of Proposed Project: Assertive Street Outreach (ASO) program 

Project Summary: Community Action Council (CAC)’s Assertive Street Outreach (ASO) 

program is comprised of two key components: targeted, assertive street-based outreach to engage 

individuals experiencing unsheltered homelessness and residing in encampments throughout 

Lexington and the provision of housing-focused Intensive Case Management (ICM) services for 

those individuals with the most critical need for housing services.  

ASO represents a collaborative effort between CAC, the Hope Center (HC) and New Vista (NV). 

ASO will utilize a team-based approach, including two Intensive Case Management Team 

Coordinators (ICMTC) and an AmeriCorps Member from CAC, one Peer each from HC and NV 

and a part-time Licensed Clinical Therapist (LCT) from NV to provide clinical therapeutic 

services. In addition, the ASO Team will convene monthly stakeholder meetings and communicate 

on an as needed basis with other local providers in Lexington’s Housing Services Network, 

including local law enforcement, the Community Paramedicine team, and the Office of 

Homelessness Prevention and Intervention (OHPI), among others, to address the specific and 

unique needs of persons experiencing unsheltered homelessness.  

The street-based outreach component of ASO will seek to engage with all persons experiencing 

homelessness persistently and consistently to establish and build rapport. ASO anticipates 

engaging at least 110 individuals annually. The housing-focused ICM component will target 

services to approximately 30 individuals annually who are identified as having the most critical 

need based on length of homelessness and acuity.  
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mailto:Bridgett.Rice@commaction.org%60


1 
 

4.1 Project Design 

The ASO program will be a collaborative effort between the lead/fiscal agent CAC, along with 

NV, and HC. The core members of the ASO Team will be the following: 

CAC NV HC 
2.0 FTE Intensive Case 
Management Team 
Coordinators (ICMTC) 

1.0 FTE Peer Support 
Specialist (Peer) 

1.0 FTE Peer Support 
Specialist (Peer) 

1.0 AmeriCorps Service 
Member 

0.5 FTE Licensed Clinical 
Therapist (LCT) 

 

ASO will use an individualized, strengths-based, person-centered and team-based approach to 

actively engage persons experiencing unsheltered homelessness. ASO will enhance and expand 

Lexington’s Homelessness Services Network’s capacity to empower the most vulnerable of 

persons experiencing homelessness to improve their health and quality of life.  

With a collective six-member team the ASO will: 1) incorporate assertive, targeted outreach and 

other engagement strategies to increase participation in and access to all available resources; 2) 

provide, with participant consent, direct mental health and/or substance abuse treatment services, 

including screening and assessment; 3) provide housing-focused ICM to link and retain 

participants in permanent housing and increase independence; 4) engage and enroll participants in 

mainstream benefits and resources, such as Medicaid, Supplemental Security Income (SSI), Social 

Security Disability Insurance (SSDI), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), and/or 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), 5) provide encampment relocation services 

in accordance with OHPI’s Standard Operating Procedures (SOP), and 6) develop a collaborative 

framework with local community partners across Lexington’s Homeless Services Network to share 

information, with participant’s consent and in accordance with all privacy and HIPAA 

requirements, to improve outcomes for individuals experiencing unsheltered homelessness. 
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Lexington has made significant strides in addressing homelessness in recent years but there 

remains a strong need for additional services. LexCount reported the number of homeless 

individuals in Lexington as 685 in 2018 and 787 in 2019. During the most recent Point in Time 

Count, Lexington’s shelter system was 33 percent over capacity. Individuals experiencing 

unsheltered homelessness are far more likely to have significant health issues, Substance Use 

Disorder (SUD) and Serious Mental Illness (SMI). According to LexCount, of the 787 identified 

homeless individuals, 18 percent had a diagnosed SMI and 20 percent had a SUD. Another concern 

is increased vulnerability and risk of victimization. The prevalence of victimization among 

homeless populations has been estimated to be between 14 to 21 percent. Those with longer 

episodes of homelessness are more at risk of being victims of, or witnesses to, violent crimes. The 

ASO program will address these realities by providing ICM services and trauma-informed 

practices to unsheltered persons, with or without an SMI or SUD, and provide a path for 

participants to reach their housing goals and achieve independence.  

CAC and ASO partners are committed to working collaboratively to provide a holistic, culturally-

appropriate, evidence-based program that provides assertive, targeted outreach and housing-

focused ICM services for persons experiencing unsheltered homelessness. Additional information 

on various services for the subpopulations identified in the RFP can be found on page 9. 

Identification and Frequency of Services: Persons experiencing unsheltered homelessness will 

primarily be identified through targeted street-based outreach efforts and the Coordinated Entry 

System (CES) which is facilitated in Lexington by CAC. ASO will accept referrals from program 

and community partners, such as local law enforcement, Community Paramedicine, local 

hospitals, psychiatric facilities and the OHPI. 

ASO will typically operate between 8:30 AM-5:00 PM Monday through Friday, including drop-
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in hours and street-based outreach services, with at least one early morning and/or late evening 

shift occurring each week in accordance with best practices. The ASO Team will also accept after-

hour calls until 8:00 PM with follow-up occurring on the next business day. CAC will finalize 

preliminary arrangements for drop-in hours at the Lexington Public Library (LPL), New Life Day 

Center (NLDC), HC and/or the new NV Drop-In Center upon award. The ASO Team will target 

its assertive, street-based outreach efforts to areas known to be frequented by persons experiencing 

homelessness. The ASO Team will visit encampments more frequently (at least once per day) to 

assist with relocation efforts as needed and directed by OHPI. Street-based outreach will take place 

using a team approach with two team members present at all times, in accordance with best 

practices and to ensure participant and staff safety. All participants must provide consent to receive 

ASO Team services as described below. 

Case Management Activities: The flexibility of the ASO model will enable rapid service delivery 

to address acute needs and provide ongoing support to assist participants in reaching short-term 

and long-term goals to exit homelessness and obtain and maintain permanent housing. Acute needs 

that may be addressed for both potential and enrolled participants include: 

• Encampment engagement and relocation: Activities will be guided by OHPI’s SOP when 

working with individuals encamped on public lands. A primary role of CAC in facilitating 

encampment relocation efforts will be the collection and storage of personal belongings. Please 

see page 7 for more details of the protocols for collection and storage of personal belongings. 

This mechanism ensures a minimum of two contacts with individuals, increasing the likelihood 

of continued engagement and participation in housing-focused case management. 

• Tim’s Law Cases: Participants clearly needing outpatient mental health services and who are 

unable to avail themselves of services on their own may be considered for filing under Tim’s 
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Law. Decisions to coordinate and file such cases will be made in consultation with the LCT. 

• 202A petitions: All team members who can effectively speak to the need for an individual to 

receive psychiatric assessment may complete a 202A petition. 

• Adult Protective Service: The Team will work with Adult Protective Services (APS) for all 

participants with active APS cases, as well as with new participants. Cooperation with APS 

will center on ensuring the wellbeing of the participant and may include providing summaries 

of service interactions, self-neglect, or incidences of abuse/neglect.  

Case management activities may include: conducting initial housing intake assessments using the 

Vulnerability Index-Service Prioritization Decision Assistance Tool (VI-SPDAT); enrollment into 

the CES; collaboration on housing case management plans; assistance in completing goal steps 

and activities; provision of voluntary therapeutic services; assistance in obtaining necessary 

documentation; assistance in applying for mainstream benefits, including completing SSI/SSDI 

Outreach, Access, and Recovery (SOAR) applications. Other activities may include providing or 

assisting with transportation or linkage to available transportation resources; referrals to 

employment and training programs; assistance in applying for insurance and accessing healthcare; 

assistance in accessing mental health and/or substance abuse treatment; life skills training; 

implementation of harm reduction strategies; and landlord engagement.

Stakeholder Interaction: While the day-to-day activities and efforts of the ASO program will be 

managed by the six-member core team, in order to deliver truly relationship-building and 

supportive services that will allow for participants to make progress toward becoming housed, the 

ASO project must and will include collaboration with a variety of caring, community-based 

professionals and programs to help the ASO team achieve their overall goal.  

To begin, the ASO team will be in regular contact with OHPI via phone, email, HMIS, and monthly 
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stakeholder meetings, regarding updates on specific individuals in needs of service and the overall 

progress of the program. The Lexington Police Department will be invited to join the monthly 

stakeholder meetings, with person-specific contacts identified for each shift and sector to facilitate 

police services as needed. The ASO Team may also work with the Sherriff’s office for additional 

support to coordinate services. Members of Code Enforcement will be invited to attend the 

monthly meetings and ongoing contact will be made with them, primarily by the ICMTCs, 

regarding encampments and other community-impacting issues, such as if an encampment is 

located on private property. The ASO Team and Community Paramedicine will provide mutual 

collaboration and coordination to address the unique service needs for individuals with high 

utilization rates. 

Given that both NV and HC operate substance abuse recovery programs, connection to these 

particular services will be easy for all participants of the ASO program. However, the ASO 

program is person-centered, so all applicable SUD treatment options will be provided to the 

participant for their decision/selection. Other SUD programs will be invited to attend the monthly 

meetings, as will crisis shelter providers. ASO participants will be given information on how to 

access all shelter programs and ICMTCs, as appropriate, will advocate with and on behalf of 

participants who may have been banned from a particular shelter but who wish to return. 

Participants who are disabled and wish to access social security benefits will be given the option 

of completing a SOAR application and can also sign permission to have the ICMTCs assist in 

delivering/receiving Social Security Administration information in a timely manner.  

ASO team members will work with all Continuum of Care (CoC) housing programs for such needs 

as verifying program eligibility, locating housing options and, most importantly, ensuring a warm 

transfer of services. The ICMTCs will, at the individual’s direction, contact landlords to coordinate 
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the completion of application and lease signing. The ICMTCs will also provide life skills coaching 

regarding the maintenance of housing and how to mitigate issues with landlords, should it ever be 

necessary. 

ASO Team Members and Responsibilities: The ICMTCs will be responsible for the provision 

of non-clinical case management and street-based outreach services, including those described in 

the sections above. The AmeriCorps Member will assist the ICMTCs in conducting outreach 

activities, completing VI-SPDAT assessments, and identifying available housing options. Peers 

will provide engagement assistance; recovery orientation and rapport building; and in assisting in 

the outreach activities as described above. The Peers will be invaluable in securing and maintaining 

participant buy-in among participants with mental and substance use disorders. Peers provide 

support by sharing their lived experiences that may often mirror those of participants. Peers who 

have previously been homeless and are now permanently housed and in the Thriving stages of 

recovery provide tangible proof to participants that housing and recovery are possible. Peers will 

assist ICMTCs in life skills training activities and provide support in all aspects of recovery. The 

LCT will assist with providing therapeutic services to individuals experiencing homelessness who 

have SMI or SUD. The LCT will dedicate approximately 10 hours per week to street-based 

outreach activities, with the remaining 10 hours per week spent meeting with participants during 

scheduled drop-in times or in the community at the participant’s discretion. The LCT will also be 

available to assist with direct outreach services on an as needed/on-call basis. Drop-in 

appointments will occur during scheduled hours at the NV Drop-In center on Mechanic Street or 

at the LPL. The LCT may conduct diagnostic assessments, conduct therapy sessions, determine 

triage risk (i.e. suicide and self-harm), use the level of care utilization system (LOCUS) tool to 

determine care need, serve as a link to substance use treatment services such as Medication 
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Assisted Treatment or to prescribers for other psychiatric medicines. The LCT will be the primary 

point of contact for determining the need for 202A petitions and Tim’s Law cases and will be 

responsible for completing necessary mental status exams.  

Procedure for personal belongings: The following table outlines the policies and procedures for 

the collection, inventory, transportation, storage and return of personal belongings collected during 

encampment relocation activities. 

Table 1. Personal Belongings Procedures and Protocols** 

Action Steps 

1. ASO Team will visit identified encampment at least once per day upon notification from 
OHPI and will continue to do so until the completion of the removal process. 

2. ASO Team will post a “Notice of Street Outreach and Services” at encampment location in 
English and Spanish (or other languages as needed) within three business days of notification. 

3. ASO Team will conduct onsite assertive outreach at the identified encampment for up to five 
business days to establish a relocation and service delivery plan with encampment residents. 

4. Within seven business days of posting the “Notice of Street Outreach and Services,” the ASO 
Team will submit a written relocation and service delivery plan to OHPI including a) number 
of individuals contacted and b) timeline for refusal, relocation or service delivery. 

5. The ASO Team will work with local housing providers to identify emergency shelter or 
available housing for encampment residents.  

6. The ASO Team will be onsite during removal process and with owner permission, will be 
responsible for the collection, transportation, inventory, and storage of personal belongings.  

7. Individuals requesting storage must, at the time of collection, sign an inventory form and 
acknowledgement that all personal belongings must be picked up within 60 days of collection. 
An extension beyond 60 days may be requested.  

8. All those requesting storage of personal belongings must participate in the inventory of 
belongings and sealing of the container. Items must fit in one storage container; though 
additional storage space may be made available on a case by case basis.  

9. Items stored will be inventoried and the list of items will be stored in the box. The ASO Team 
will seal the box in the individual’s presence and label with his/her initials and birthdate.  

10. The ASO Team will transport stored belongings to a non-climate-controlled storage unit. 

11. A hardcopy of the signed inventory and acknowledgment form will be kept on file and all 
boxes will be numbered and tracked via spreadsheet.  
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12.  Individuals may request the removal of items from the storage bin by advance appointments 
made via phone, email or in person during drop-in hours.  

13. Individuals may request a maximum of one removal per week, unless a move-in is occurring, 
in which case, staff will make every effort to facilitate any number of removals, as possible.  

14. The ASO Team will attempt to contact individuals refusing to participate in case management 
services at least twice per month until such time as items are removed, individual agree to 
participate in ongoing case management, or the 60-day period expires. 

15. Items uncollected after the 60-day period without a request for an extension will be discarded. 
** In accordance with the SOP from OHPI regarding the identification and removal of an encampment. 

Best Practices: ASO will incorporate industry best practices into all aspects of the program. All 

services will be strengths-based and person-centered. Team members will collaborate with 

participants to enable their individual strengths and empower participants to work toward 

achieving their short- and long-term goals. ASO will utilize a housing-focused case management 

strategy to assess participant need, develop a housing case management plan, provide linkage to 

available housing resources, and connection to the CES. The ASO Team will utilize a trauma-

informed care approach to reduce risks of re-traumatization of individuals who may have 

experienced complex trauma. Staff will receive training in Mental Health First Aid so that 

individuals in or approaching crisis receive an appropriate, supportive response. Motivational 

Interviewing techniques will be utilized to determine an individual’s motivation in developing 

goals and strategies. Assertive Engagement will be used in place of Motivational Interviewing 

when necessary.  Assertive Engagement provides concrete examples of why a behavior or action 

has been harmful or maladaptive and assists Team members in breaking down barriers to change 

language, such as projection or internalization.  

Safety: CAC will always operate the street-based outreach activities using multiple teams of at 

least two-members. CAC will strengthen its relationship and formalize its partnerships upon award 

with other local providers, including local law enforcement and the community paramedicine 



9 
 

team, to ensure staff and participant safety. Staff will be provided with a mobile telephone and 

training and materials on topics such as safe syringe disposal; overdose prevention, recognition, 

and response, including Narcan; CPR and First Aid; cultural competency; and procedures for 

documenting outreach activities, including any adverse incidents. 

Subpopulations: Every individual, regardless of subpopulation, will receive the case management 

and outreach services described above. CAC recognizes that members of various subpopulations 

may have their own particular needs and niche service requirements. The ASO program will follow 

the following general guidelines for each identified subpopulation: 

1. Veterans: Connection to Every Veteran Housed will be provided as will assistance with DD214 

documentation, connecting with VA representatives, and identifying other resources. 

2. Youth Ages 18-24: Assessments will be completed using the Youth VI-SPDAT and placed on 

the CES according to their acuity scores. Participants will also be given the opportunity to 

connect with Arbor Youth Services for additional supports. 

3. Families with children: Assessments will be completed using the Family VI-SPDAT and will 

be placed on the CES according to their acuity scores. Families will also be given the 

opportunity to connect with CAC’s Emergency Family Housing or Salvation Army.  

4. Intimate Partner Violence: Assistance in filing Emergency Protection Orders/Domestic 

Violence Orders and in connecting to Greenhouse17 or other support groups/shelters. 

5. Severe Mental Illness: Persons with suspected SMI will be linked with the LCT and assessed 

for referral to the Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) Team or a local psychiatric facility. 

The LCT will also be on-call, as availability allows, in the event of crisis situations occurring 

during street-based outreach. The ASO Team will assist those with SMI in accessing needed 

medications, applying for healthcare coverage, and by providing transportation to doctor’s 
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appointments or local pharmacies.  

6. Substance Use Disorders: Persons with SUDs will be assisted in developing a harm reduction 

plan to leverage available community resources such as developing a scheduled use plan, 

identifying safe use spaces, and providing access to needle exchange programs. Individuals 

will be given the option of accessing treatment at a substance use program of their choice.  

7. Persons with HIV/AIDS: Those with HIV/AIDS will be assisted in accessing necessary 

medications by helping them obtain healthcare coverage or coordinating transportation to 

medical appointments and pharmacies. They will also be connected to AVOL Kentucky, Inc.  

4.2 Services and Outcomes 

Many of the services provided by ASO are currently available within Lexington’s Homeless 

Services Network. However, ASO represents a concerted effort to coordinate these existing 

services into a comprehensive model to ensure that those with the greatest need can access all the 

supports and services currently available. ASO will also provide funding to address the gap in 

access to therapeutic mental health/substance abuse services for individuals who are not enrolled 

in a supportive service program and who also lack healthcare coverage. This program also meets 

and provides services for participants where they are, without requiring them to come to an office. 

This is particularly important for those with a SUD or SMI. While ASO will offer drop-in and 

scheduled office hours, it will also allow for access to the LCT during street-based outreach 

activities. Finally, ASO also provides targeted, assertive outreach and ICM services for individuals 

experiencing unsheltered homelessness that are disconnected from other local resources or that 

have elected not to participate in Lexington’s CES.  

Typical homelessness programs provide services only to individuals electing to participate in them. 

ASO will provide assertive street outreach for all disconnected individuals, regardless of 
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enrollment in a program or service. All identified unsheltered individuals will receive person-

centered, trauma-informed assistance. HC will provide a van for transportation assistance for 

individuals seeking shelter. CAC will work with other local providers to identify/coordinate 

transportation using bus passes and shuttle services.  

The LCT will provide substance use and/or mental health services during scheduled drop-in hours, 

by appointment, and during street-based outreach activities, including encampment relocation 

efforts and on-call services during regular business hours. All individuals presenting with SUD or 

mental health concerns will be assessed for services and referred to appropriate resources beyond 

those provided by the LCT in the course of their ASO duties.  

Table 2. Annual Outcome Measures 

Outcome Measure Target 
Number 

Percentage 
Met 

Individuals Contacted 110 - 
(#) 

Number of Homeless Unsheltered Individuals Enrolled in ICM 
Services 30 - 

(#) 
Number of Individuals Enrolled in ICM Receiving a 

Comprehensive Assessment 24 80% 
(#/%) 

Number of Individuals Enrolled in ICM That Receive One or 
More Core Services 27 90% 

(#/%) 
Unsheltered Homeless Individuals Contacted Whose Days on 

Street were Reduced 40 37% 
(#/%) 

Unsheltered Homeless Individuals Enrolled in ICM with 
Increased Income 10 30% 

(#/%) 
Unsheltered Homeless Individuals Contacted that Accessed 

Substance Abuse Treatment or Mental Health Services 30 37% 
(#/%) 

Homeless Individuals Enrolled in ICM Who Are Permanently 
Housed 15 50% 

(#/%) 
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4.3 Sustainability 

CAC will convene a Sustainability subcommittee which will meet regularly throughout the life of 

the grant and which will include staff, stakeholders such as OHPI, invested community members 

and/or potential donors. Together, these members will take an active role in ensuring project 

sustainability. The committee will review ongoing program data and outcomes to determine what 

services and components will be continued, modified, increased, or added after the initial funding 

is no longer available. This committee will also be responsible for supporting the following 

sustainability efforts conducted by CAC’s internal, full time development team:  

Medicaid Provision. CAC has already begun exploring the feasibility of becoming a Medicaid 

provider which, if successfully completed, should allow for future program costs associated with 

case management services to be eligible for reimbursement by Medicaid.  

Grant sourcing. CAC will identify and pursue all suitable competitive funding opportunities. As 

opportunities become available in future rounds of Lexington CoC funding, CAC will apply for 

outreach activities under Supportive Services Only (SSO) funding. CAC will also explore the 

feasibility of applying for street outreach services under Emergency Solutions Grants Program. 

CAC will also monitor the availability of funds from the Administration for Children and Families’ 

Street Outreach Program and the Cooperative Agreements to Benefit Homeless Individuals under 

the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CAC will also submit 

applications to private entities with a history of supporting community-based revitalization 

programs and/or those specifically dedicated to ending homelessness, such as Fluor Foundation, 

JPMorgan Chase Foundation and others.  

Education and promotion. As a means of educating the community on issues related to chronic 

homelessness, CAC, with support from OHPI, will regularly promote—through print, digital, 
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social media and news media platforms—the impact and outcomes of the ASO project and how it 

is positively and practically addressing real needs for both its participants and the community. This 

education should also pave the way for the identification of potential funders, or “champions,” of 

our services.  

Major gifts. According to an article that appeared in the Herald-Leader in 2016, Lexington 

received a designation of second “most generous” city in the country. Perhaps as a nod to that 

designation, recent crowd-sourcing campaigns for funds to address homelessness and panhandling 

have been particularly successful. Building upon that community history and its own track record 

for raising private support, CAC will launch a major gifts program to identify and solicit major 

charitable gifts from benefactors, setting a goal of at least $30,000.  

In-kind support. CAC will routinely solicit support from local businesses for needs such as 

transportation assistance, personal belongings storage and other supplies and services.  

4.4 Organizational Capacity and Experience 

As mentioned, implementation of ASO will be based on collaboration among CAC, HC, and NV. 

CAC currently operates 12 programs related to housing and homelessness in Lexington and 16 

other counties, providing housing and/or homeless prevention services to approximately 200 

households each year. From March 2016 to June 2019 HC operated LFUCG’s Street Outreach 

Program, which provided services to 112 individuals during the last fiscal year. NV provides 

services to individuals with mental health, substance abuse, and intellectual and developmental 

disabilities (IDD) and in 2017, provided 463,953 instances of services.  

The ASO Project Director will be CAC’s Director of Housing and Homeless Services (OHHS), 

Mr. Marty Jones. The ICMTCs and one AmeriCorps member will be primarily housed at CAC’s 

710 W High Street location, one Peer each will be based at the HC and the NV Drop-In Center on 
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Mechanic Street, which will also house the LCT. This allows for three potential points of contact 

for prospective participants. However, the majority of ASO services will occur outside of typical 

office locations, with most services occurring during street-based outreach activities or during 

regularly scheduled drop-in hours. The main point of contact and ASO project lead will be Dylan 

Schell at CAC’s High Street location.  

As mentioned, HC operated the LFUCG Targeted Street Outreach Program which ended on June 

30, 2019. This project will expand that outreach by adding two new positions and an increase of 

resources available by a collaborative organizational arrangement. 

CAC, a recipient of multiple federal, state, and local grant awards over the last five decades, is 

well-versed in complying with all federal, state and local reporting requirements, and has 

continuously operated at the highest levels of financial accountability. In FY 2018, CAC 

administered more than 20 federal funding streams and managed more than 75 budgets through its 

fund accounting system. CAC’s annual fiscal year budget ending June 30, 2018 was $24,805,917 

with in-kind contributions (excluded from GAAP) of $3,563,123.  

CAC was created during the launch of the War on Poverty in 1964. Its mission states, “Community 

Action Council prevents, reduces and eliminates poverty among individuals, families and 

communities through direct services and advocacy.” CAC operates as a matrix organization in 

which each staff member has a direct supervisor for daily guidance and accountability but is also 

expected to work collaboratively across all departments. CAC’s current management team consists 

of an Interim Executive Director and seven senior managers, with a combined 100 years of 

experience in providing supportive services to individuals and families. The senior team is 

responsible for the day-to-day operations and programming of CAC. CAC’s internal governance 

structure also includes its Board of Directors and Head Start Policy Council, which oversee all 
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CAC operations and meet monthly to guide CAC’s efforts.  

CAC is and will continue to be a full participant in HMIS for all of its housing and homelessness 

services programs. As indicated in the budget narrative, CAC will purchase an additional HMIS 

license to ensure full HMIS participation throughout the duration of the ASO project. 

Table 3. Assertive Street Outreach Timeline 

Action Steps Related Activities Staff/Agencies Milestones/Dates** 
Program 
Start-up  

1. Notification of Award. 
2. Establish fiscal, legal, and administrative 

oversight.  
3. Finalize MOUs.  
4. Screen and hire staff. 
5. Order and receive program supplies. 
6. Rent and prepare unit for personal 

belonging storage 
7. Monthly stakeholder meetings begin. 
8. Sustainability subcommittee convenes 

1. OHPI 
2. OHPI, CAC 
3. OHPI, ASO 
4. HR 
5. PD, ASO 
6. ASO 
7. PD, ASO 
8. CAC 

1. Upon Award 
2. Upon Award 
3. Upon Award 
4. Weeks 3-12 
5. Weeks 2-4 
6. Weeks 4-6 
7. Week 4, ongoing 
8. Q1, ongoing 

Assertive 
Street 
Outreach & 
Intensive 
Case 
Management 

1. Street-based Outreach begins 
2. Regularly scheduled drop-in hours begin. 
3. ICM enrollment begins. 
4. Weekly ASO Team meetings begin.  
5. All homeless unsheltered contact points 

within service area identified and 
regularly engaged. 

1. ASO 
2. ASO 
3. ASO 
4. PD, ASO 
5. ASO 
 

1. Immediately 
Upon Award, 
ongoing 

2. Week 2, ongoing 
3. Week 4, ongoing 
4. Week 2, ongoing 
5. Week 36, ongoing 

Evaluation 1. Project evaluation process established 
2. All reporting and data requirements fully 

operational as per HMIS. 
3. Quarterly reporting begins. 
4. Target Outcomes met. 
5. Project evaluation and quality assurance 

processes continue. 

1. PD, ASO 
2. PD, OHHS, 

ASO 
3. PD, ASO 
4. PD, ASO 
5. PD, ASO 

1. Week 2-4 
2. Week 2-4 
3. Week 12, 

Ongoing 
4. End of Year 3 
5. End of Year 1 

OHPI=Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention; CAC=Community Action Agency; 
HR=Human Resources; PD= Project Director; ASO=Assertive Street Outreach; HMIS=Homeless 
Management Information System; OHHS=Office of Housing and Homeless Services  
** Assumes an executed grant agreement with a start date of September 1, 2019 
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4.5 Budget/Budget Narrative 

Budget 

Revenue Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Revenue Total -280,000 -280,000 -280,000 

Expense – Program Operations       

Salary—Permanent 77,166 77,166 77,166 

Salary—Overtime 5,822 5,822 5,822 

FICA 6,226 6,226 6,226 

Workers' Comp 586 586 586 

Pension 263 263 263 

Health Insurance 13,808 13,808 13,808 

Life Insurance 242 242 242 

Disability Insurance 2,726 2,726 2,726 

Accrued Leave 4,215 4,215 4,215 

In-Area Travel 3,132 3,132 3,132 

Office Supplies 6,959 4,759 5,659 

Program Supplies 3,975 5,175 4,275 

Contract 116,500 116,500 116,500 

Insurance & Bonding 1,178 1,178 1,178 

Indirect Cost 30,223 30,223 30,223 

Facilities 360 360 360 

ITS expenses 2,350 2,350 2,350 

Program Transportation 3,869 4,869 4,869 

HMIS Total 400 400 400 

Expense Total 280,000 280,000 280,000 

ANNUAL FUNDING REQUEST: $280,000  

Personnel: Budget $82,988 per year – To fund the salaries for: (1) Project Director (PD)/ Director 

of the Office of Housing and Homelessness Services - $2,960 - 0.05 FTE for program oversight 

(2) Intensive Case Management Team Coordinator (ICMTC) - $74,206 - 2.00 FTE to provide ICM 

and Outreach services. (3) Overtime - $5,822 - to fund 160 annual overtime hours. Ongoing 

expenses. 
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Fringe Benefits: Budget $28,066 per year – To fund the following fringe benefits: (1) FICA - 

$6,226 at a cost of 7.65 percent of gross wages. (2) Workers Compensation - $586 paid at state 

rates for varying classes and budgeted at approximately 0.0522 percent of gross wages. (3) 

Disability Insurance - $2,726 paid at 3.5 percent of gross wages. (4) Unemployment Compensation 

- $0.00 paid as the Council is self-insured. (5) Health Insurance - $13,808 paid to provide coverage 

for staff enrolled in the Council’s qualified health plans. (6) Life Insurance - $242 calculated at 

0.24 percent of gross wages. (7) Pension - $263 paid at 8.0 percent of gross wages for the PD. (8) 

Accrued Leave - $4,215 - To fund the cost of employees’ paid leave. Ongoing expenses. 

Travel: Budget $3,132 per year - In-area travel. Calculated at a rate of up to 5,400 miles per year 

at the federal mileage rate of $0.58 per mile. Ongoing expense. 

Operating Expenses: Budget $135,591 per year - (1) Office Supplies - $6,959 for cell phones, 

tablets, office supplies, and printing. Cellphones and tablets are a one-time expense. (2) Program 

Supplies - $3,975 for the rental of a storage unit (ongoing) and storage supplies (one-time in Years 

1 & 2). (3) Transportation Expense - $3,869 to provide costs associated with transportation. 

Increase costs in Year 2 and 3. (4) Contract Expense - $116,500 to provide funding to New Vista 

and Hope Center to support the 0.50 FTE Licensed Clinical Therapist and 2.0 FTE Peer Support 

Specialists. Ongoing expenses. (5) Insurance and Bonding - $1,178 for insurance on the employees 

operating within the program. The Council budgets insurance at approximately $575 per 

employee. Ongoing expenses. (6) Facilities - $360 for the portion of costs related to facilities 

utilized by program staff. Ongoing expenses. (7) Shared Communications and IT - $2,350 - To 

cover the costs related to communications and information technology expenses for program staff. 

Ongoing expenses. (8) HMIS License - $400 to purchase additional HMIS licenses. Ongoing 

expenses. 

Indirect Costs: Budget $30,223 per year - To provide for the portion related to the ASO program 

costs for administrative functions such as Accounting, Human Resources, the Office of the 

Executive Director as approved by the HHS Indirect Cost Rate Agreement. The Council has a 

provisional rate of 13 percent, however, has budgeted at 12.1 percent based on historical costs. 

Ongoing expense. 
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